Tuesday, May 18, 2021

Ms. Crystal Wallace Business Operations Specialist Region 4 Education Service Center 7145 West Tidwell Road Houston, TX 77092 cwallace@esc4.net

Dear Ms. Wallace:

Spectrum Enterprise is pleased to submit the enclosed proposal in response to your Request for Proposal (RFP). Our response demonstrates Spectrum's ability to provide network solutions that will enable Region 4 Education Service Center to meet its technology needs.

Spectrum provides advanced broadband services to more than one million business customers nationally, and we are one of the largest Ethernet providers in the country and the largest provider in the major US cities we serve.

Partnering with Spectrum provides the foundation to open opportunity, drive innovation and deliver exceptional experiences. Spectrum's advanced technology and product innovations address customer's growing demands for increased bandwidth, scalability, reliability and mobility. Spectrum is committed to delivering industry-leading client service and support.

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this response to your RFP. Patrick Kufrovich, Key Account Lead, is spearheading Spectrum's effort. He can be reached at (512) 531-3264 and patrick.kufrovich@charter.com.

Sincerely,

Lynne P. Bell Lynne P. Bell (May 17, 2021 12:02 PDT)

Lynne Bell VP of Strategic Sales

/nne P. Bell

E-signed 2021-05-17 12:02PM PDT lynne.bell@charter.com

^{*} Spectrum Enterprise is a commercial brand of Charter Communications, Inc. The legal entity proposing hereunder is Charter Communications Operating LLC, a subsidiary of Charter Communications, Inc.

TERMS OF OFFER

This proposal shall not be considered an acceptance of any offer by Region 4 Education Service Center or otherwise create a binding contract between Region 4 Education Service Center and Spectrum.

Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/seterms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").

Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP.

In the event only a portion of Spectrum's proposal is accepted, Spectrum reserves the right to further negotiate the terms of such partial acceptance prior to final bid award acceptance by Spectrum.

The terms of this proposal are confidential and should not be disclosed directly or indirectly to any third party, except as may be required by law.

The qualifications stated herein apply to all parts, provisions, and documents of the RFP and Spectrum's response, regardless of whether an explicit exception or qualification is taken thereto by Spectrum.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Terms Of Offer	3
Table Of Contents	4
About Us	5
Executive Summary	6
Spectrum's Response To Region 4 Education Service Center	7
RFP Response	8
I. Background And Scope Of Work	9
li. Calendar Of Events (All Dates Are Tentative And Subject To Change):	12
lii. Instructions To Offerors	13
lv. Evaluation Process And Criteria	19
Appendix A	22
Offer And Contract Signature Form	28
Appendix B	29
Spectrum Service Proposal	58
Stay Connected K-12 Product Brief	59
References	60
Appendix C	61
Appendix C, Doc #1	62
Appendix C, Doc #2	63
Appendix C, Doc # 3	64
Appendix C, Doc # 4	65
Stay Connected Addendum	66
Annendix D	72



ABOUT US

Spectrum Enterprise, a commercial brand of Charter Communications, is a national provider of scalable, fiber-based technology solutions serving many of America's largest businesses and communications service providers. The broad Spectrum Enterprise portfolio of networking and managed services solutions includes Internet access, Ethernet and Managed Network Services, Voice and TV solutions. Our team of experts works closely with clients to achieve greater business success by providing solutions designed to meet their evolving needs. For more information, visit enterprise spectrum.com.

Standing at the intersection of technology and entertainment, we facilitate essential communications that connect more than 28 million residential and commercial customers in 41 states. Our commitment to serving customers and exceeding their expectations is the foundation of our business strategy and this philosophy that guides our 98,000 employees.

All of our services are delivered over our state-of-the-art network and we back them up with professional customer service and support from local technicians. We are dedicated to bringing our clients innovative, reliable services, and responsible care.



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Spectrum Enterprise ("Spectrum"), a commercial brand of Charter Communications, is pleased to provide this response illustrating our ability to provide Region 4 Education Service Center with broadband services. We take pride in being an innovative resource for businesses, schools and communities. Our reliable and economical service is a natural fit with your mission.

Unsurpassed Expertise and Customer Support

A network of specially trained, industry experts supports Spectrum. We have around-the-clock, U.S.-based business support centers and knowledgeable, locally based technicians who are specifically trained to help with your unique needs. Our dedicated work ethic, shared knowledge, and proprietary systems allow us to ensure that the solutions we are quoting Region 4 Education Service Center will match your specific and discrete needs.

When you collaborate with Spectrum for communications services, we assign a dedicated account team who will support your services:

- Account Executive: a dedicated, local market expert who is available for your consultation needs
- Sales Engineering: trained technical experts who customize designs based on your needs.
- Project Management: customer focused experts who manage your build and communicate with you every step of the way
- Account Manager: your point of contact; responsible for providing you with accurate billing and consultation on future growth needs
- Network Operations Center: Spectrum staff that continuously monitors the network

Implementation Plan

Upon award of the project, Spectrum will meet with your technical staff to create the project work plan. The work plan will include an assessment of site readiness with specific recommendations based upon site visits. Spectrum will jointly prepare a project work schedule with Region 4 Education Service Center, identifying key project milestones.

We will assign a team experienced in designing, implementing, and maintain large-scale networks to this project. We dedicate in-house project managers who will be the point of contact for the project life cycle. Our project managers understand the importance of meeting deadlines and satisfying customer expectations.

Spectrum operates with a team concept. We ensure work is crosschecked and resources are available to provide backup support, as needed, and that are knowledgeable in the processes and procedures used in this project.

Upon completion of the construction, the project will be handed off to a local Network Technician who will install the Spectrum equipment, as applicable, at each respective Region 4 Education Service Center's site. The Network Technician will work with the Network Operations Center to verify connectivity and to provision the correct bandwidth. We will notify you once installation and testing are complete, and service is available for use.

Spectrum's implementation plan is an estimate only. Actual dates and periods may vary due to, but not limited to, inclement weather. The estimate for your service delivery is expected to be 120 days.



SPECTRUM'S RESPONSE TO REGION 4 EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER

Spectrum is pleased to submit this formal proposal for Internet Service to Region 4 Education Service Center. On the pages to follow, Spectrum has responded to your Request for Proposal and addressed each requirement to demonstrate that we can provide you with the best, most timely, cost effective solution to meet your needs. We based our responses on an understanding of your needs from both a technical and a business perspective. Whenever possible, we linked our responses back to your needs to show you not only what we offer, but also why it matters to you. We also provided evidence of our competence to deliver solutions in a professional manner, and have indicated the value of our recommendations for you.

As the second largest cable operator in the United States, Spectrum can provide customized solutions in several marketplaces that are unified, powerful, cost-effective, easily managed, and perhaps most importantly, reliable.

Spectrum owns and operates our network from end-to-end and offers one phone number to call after installation for all support and service inquiries. There is never any question as to how to get help, or who will be supporting you should you ever need assistance.

- Service and Savings: Owning our network allows us to not only manage and monitor your services, but also pass cost savings on to our end customers with highly competitive rates
- Reliable connectivity: With dedicated connectivity up to 10 Gbps, Spectrum can offer the newest technology and services
- Adaptability: Spectrum offers future-proof solutions that are scalable and flexible to adapt to our customers changing requirements
- Service: We serve all of our customers with a dedicated team of Account Executives with supporting teams that understand complex requirements for acquiring, funding and installing solutions like yours

We understand that not all businesses have the same needs and are committed to working with our clients to move past limitations, integrating the most valuable solutions, and achieving greater success together. We invite you to review the following response and discover how Spectrum can provide a solution for you. Our customers value our knowledge and understanding of their challenges, objectives, operating environments, and rely on our accumulation of best practices from the industry. We realize that your initiatives can often create more ways to use our services than was originally anticipated, so you need to be able to adapt quickly, as demand increases. Since we design solutions that solve your specific needs and anticipate future growth needs, we know that you will achieve the results that you expect from your broadband provider now, and into the future.



RFP RESPONSE



7145 West Tidwell Road ~ Houston, Texas 77092 (713)-462-7708

www.esc4.net

NOTICE TO OFFEROR

Solicitation Number 21-08

Request for Proposal ("RFP")

by

Region 4 Education Service Center ("ESC")

for

Internet Service Provider for TEA Connect Texas Program SUBMITTAL DEADLINE: Tuesday, May 4, 2021, 10:00 AM CENTRAL TIME

Questions regarding this RFP must be submitted in writing to Crystal Wallace, Business Operations Specialist, at questions@esc4.net no later than April 21, 2021. All questions and answers will be posted to https://www.esc4.net/services/purchasing/region-4-omnia-solicitations. Offerors are responsible for viewing the website to review all questions and answers prior to submitting proposals. Oral communications concerning this RFP shall not be binding and shall in no way excuse an Offeror of the obligations set forth in this proposal.

Proposals must be sealed, prominently marked with the RFP solicitation number, RFP title, RFP opening time/date and name of Offeror. Submissions must be received by the Region 4 ESC office at: 7145 West Tidwell Road, Houston, TX 77092 no later than 10:00 a.m. central time. Proposals received prior to the submittal deadline will be time-stamped upon receipt and kept secure and unopened. At the submittal deadline, Region 4 ESC will collect all proposals received before the deadline in the room designated for the proposal opening. Proposals will be opened and recorded publicly. Any proposal received later than the specified time, whether delivered in person, courier or mailed, will not be considered. Late proposals will be returned to sender unopened. Please note: due to Covid-19, Region 4 ESC is not allowing individuals to attend the bid opening in person but will conduct the opening via zoom. To attend, please email cwallace@esc4.net for call in instructions.

VIRTUAL NON-MANDATORY PRE-PROPOSAL CONFERENCE

Offerors are strongly encouraged, but not required to participate in a pre-proposal conference with the Business Operations Specialist, which will be held on Tuesday, April 20, 2021 at 10:00 a.m. virtually. To attend the conference, potential Offeror must notify Crystal Wallace, Business Operations Specialist, at cwallace@esc4.net. by 3:00 p.m., Monday, April 19, 2021. The purpose of this conference is to clarify the contents of this RFP in order to prevent any misunderstanding of Region 4 ESC's position. Any doubt as to the requirements of this RFP or any apparent omission or discrepancy should be presented to Region 4 ESC at this conference. Region 4 ESC will then determine the appropriate action necessary, if any, and may issue a written addendum to the RFP. Oral statements or instructions will not constitute an addendum to this RFP.

Publication Date: April 7, 2021



I. BACKGROUND AND SCOPE OF WORK

A. Introduction

Region 4 Education Service Center ("Region 4 ESC") requests proposals from qualified suppliers with the intent to enter into a Contract for Internet Service Provider for TEA Connect Texas Program. Region 4 ESC is seeking providers that have the depth, breadth, and quality of resources necessary to offer a fixed broadband Internet program, with a minimum speed of 25/3, specifically for economically disadvantaged kindergarten through 12th grade households in Texas (TEA Connect Texas).

Each awarded Offeror(s) may offer their complete product and service offering, or balance of line. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to accept or reject any or all balance of line items offered, and the Offeror(s) must present the TEA Connect Texas Offering on a stand-alone basis meeting the criteria listed in the TEA Connect Texas Program and Requirements section.

The Contract is based on the need to provide the economic benefits of volume purchasing and reduction in administrative costs through cooperative purchasing to schools and other members.

Region 4 ESC reserves the right to periodically assess the telecommunications market and issue a future solicitation(s) if new technologies become available.

B. REGION 4 Education Service Center ("Region 4" or "Region 4 ESC")

Region 4 ESC is an education service center established by the Texas Legislature in 1967 to assist school districts and charter schools in improving efficiencies. Region 4 ESC directly serves a seven-county area comprised of 48 public school districts and 40 open-enrollment charter schools, representing more than 1.2 million students, 101,000 educators and 1,500 campuses. Through cooperative contracts Region 4 ESC extends the opportunity to operate more efficiently and economically to agencies through OMNIA Partners (see below). In partnership with the Texas Education Agency ("TEA"), Region 4 ESC will be responsible for administering the TEA Connect Texas Program, and should State funding become available to subsidize this program, Region 4 ESC, through its cooperative contract with OMNIA Partners, will be the only purchasing methodology allowed for such subsidies. Texas Local Lead Agency (LEAs) who chose to purchase fixed broadband services outside of this contract will not have access to associated TEA Grant programs, should they be made available. Offers received may be shared with TEA for use in understanding the Offeror's capacity to service students across Texas.

C. OMNIA Partners

Region 4 ESC, as the Principal Procurement Agency, defined in APPENDIX D, has partnered with OMNIA Partners, Public Sector ("OMNIA Partners") to provide marketing support of the Contract (also known as the "Master Agreement" in materials distributed by OMNIA Partners) from this solicitation available to Texas agencies, including state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit ("Public Agencies"), through OMNIA Partners' cooperative purchasing program. Region 4 ESC is acting as the contracting agency for any other Public Agency that elects to utilize the resulting Master Agreement. Use of the Master Agreement by any Public Agency is preceded by their registration with OMNIA Partners (a



"Participating Public Agency") and by using the Master Agreement, any such Participating Public Agency agrees that it is registered with OMNIA Partners, whether pursuant to the terms of a Master Intergovernmental Purchasing Cooperative Agreement, a form of which is attached hereto on APPENDIX D, or as otherwise agreed to. APPENDIX D contains additional information about OMNIA Partners and the cooperative purchasing program.

OMNIA Partners provides shared services and supply chain optimization to government, education and the private sector. With corporate, pricing and sales commitments from the Contractor, OMNIA Partners provides marketing and administrative support for the Contractor that directly promotes the Contractor's products and services to Participating Public Agencies though multiple channels, each designed to promote specific products and services to Public Agencies. Participating Public Agencies benefit from pricing based on aggregate spend and the convenience of a contract that has already been advertised and publicly competed. The Contractor benefits from a contract that generally allows Participating Public Agencies to directly purchase goods and services without the Contractor's need to respond to additional competitive solicitations. As such, the Contractor must be able to accommodate a demand for services and to fulfill obligations as described herein and respond to the OMNIA Partners documents (APPENDIX D).

D. Estimated Spend

While no minimum volume is guaranteed to the Contractor, the estimated annual volume of services and products purchased under the Master Agreement through OMNIA Partners is approximately \$100 million annually in the State of Texas.

E. TEA Connect Texas Program and Requirements

- The TEA Connect Texas program is specific to Texas kindergarten through 12th grade LEAs. Services include Internet service and any necessary equipment to provide wired broadband service to support the TEA Connect Texas program.
 - a. Bandwidth speeds: minimally, 25 MBps download and 3 Mbps upload
 - b. Circuit Availability: 99.99% uptime
 - c. Data Cap: Unlimited data usage with no data throttling
 - d. Content Filtering: Accommodate standard Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA) content filtering requirements as requested by each Participating Public Agency
 - e. Net Neutrality: Service cannot be deprioritized versus other customers at any time
- 2. To keep up with the evolving industry, all new sources of Internet connections are contemplated and included in the scope.
- 3. The TEA Connect Texas program provides wired broadband Internet service to economically disadvantaged and rural households without requiring personal contact information or credit information from the individual households. This will be accomplished through the school districts administration of the program using a student identification number.
 - Account holders will be at the LEA or Region 4 level.
 - b. Provider will require no personal information of eligible students or their guardians other than address information and permissions necessary for installation.
 - c. The TEA Connect Texas Program is designed to service economically disadvantaged students. Economically disadvantaged households are those considered eligible for the free or reduced lunch program, as defined by the Texas Education Agency.



- d. Upon termination of services, each LEA will be responsible for returning related hardware to the respective provider. Texas LEA should be responsible for equipment deposits and returns, not individual households.
- 4. Lines may be purchased in bulk by Region 4 ESC and then allocated to LEA by Region 4.
- 5. Customer Service.
 - a. A TEA Connect Texas Program support line will be made available by the Offeror to support school district-level questions and issues.
 - b. Trouble Reporting Products must be available 24 hours per day, 7 days a week, 365 days per year.
 - c. Installing and Customer Support should have multilingual capabilities.
 - d. Customer Support: Awarded Offeror will provide timely and accurate technical advice and sales support to Region 4 ESC staff and Participating Public Agencies. Contractor shall respond to such requests within one (1) working day after receipt of the request.
- 6. Upgradable Services. Households included in the TEA Connect Texas Program are not eligible for additional or upgradeable services such as television, phone and higher speed Internet access.



II. CALENDAR OF EVENTS (ALL DATES ARE TENTATIVE AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE):

Event	Date
Issue RFP	April 7, 2021
Pre-proposal Virtual Conference	April 20, 2021
Deadline for receipt of questions via email	April 21, 2021
Issue Addenda (if required)	TBD
Proposal Due Date	May 4, 2021
Approval from Region 4 ESC	June 29, 2021
Contract Effective Date	August 1, 2021



III. INSTRUCTIONS TO OFFERORS

1. Key Definitions

Contract: The legal agreement executed between Region 4 ESC and the awarded Offeror.

A draft of the Contract is provided as Appendix A.

Contractor: Any provider or seller of goods or services who, as a result of the competitive

solicitation process, is awarded a Contract by Region 4 ESC.

Days: calendar days

Offeror: A supplier submitting a proposal in response to a solicitation.

- 2. Inquiries and Discrepancies: Questions regarding this solicitation must be submitted in writing to Crystal Wallace, Business Operations Specialist, at questions@esc4.net no later than April 21, 2021. All questions and answers will be posted to https://www.esc4.net/services/purchasing/region-4-omnia-solicitations. Offerors are responsible for viewing the website to review all questions and answers prior to submitting proposals. Oral communications concerning this RFP shall not be binding and shall in no way excuse an Offeror of the obligations set forth in this proposal.
- 3. Restricted and Prohibited Communications with Region 4 ESC: During the period between the date Region 4 ESC issues this RFP and the selection of the Contractor by Region 4 ESC, if any, Offerors shall restrict all contact with Region 4 ESC and direct all questions regarding this RFP, including questions regarding terms and conditions, only to the individual identified above in section "Inquiries and Discrepancies" in the specified manner. Do not contact members of the Board of Directors, other employees of Region 4 ESC or any of Region 4 ESC's agents or administrators. Contact with any of these prohibited individuals after issuance of this RFP and before selection is made, may result in disqualification of the Offeror.

The communications prohibition shall terminate when the Contract is recommended by the administration, considered by the Board of Directors at a noticed public meeting, and the Contract has been awarded. In the event the Board of Directors refers the recommendation back to staff for reconsideration, the communications prohibition shall continue. Additionally, during the time period between the award of the Contract by the Board of Directors and the execution of the Contract, Offerors shall not engage in any prohibited communications as described in this section.

Prohibited communications includes direct contact, discussion, or promotion of any Offeror's response with any member of Region 4 ESC's Board of Directors or employees except for communications with Region 4 ESC's designated representative as set forth in this RFP and only in the course of inquiries, briefings, interviews, or presentations. This prohibition is intended to create a level playing field for all potential Offerors, assure that decisions are made in public, and to protect the integrity of the RFP process. Except as provided in the above stated exceptions, the following communications regarding this RFP are prohibited:

- Communications between a potential Offeror, Offeror, their lobbyist or consultant and any member of Region 4 ESC's Board of Directors;
- Communications between any Region 4 ESC Director and any member of a selection or evaluation committee; and
- Communications between any Region 4 ESC Director and administrator or employee.

The communications prohibition shall not apply to the following:



- Communications with Region 4 ESC's purchasing staff specifically named and authorized to conduct and receive such communications under this RFP or upon the request of Region 4 ESC, with Region 4 ESC's legal counsel; and
- Presentations made to the Board of Directors during any duly noticed public meeting.

Nothing contained herein shall prohibit any person or entity from publicly addressing Region 4 ESC's Board of Directors during any duly noticed public meeting, in accordance with applicable Board policies, on a matter other than this RFP or in connection with a presentation requested by Region 4 ESC's representatives.

4. <u>Current products:</u> Proposals shall be for new materials and equipment in current production and marketed to the general public, education and government agencies at the time the proposal is submitted.

<u>Proposal Format:</u> Proposals must contain two (2) bound and signed original copies of the solicitation, and two (2) electronic copies on flash drives shall be provided. Offeror must also submit two (2) electronic proposals free of proprietary information to be posted, if awarded a Contract. **Please note:** due to COVID-19, revised instructions will be addressed during the preproposal conference.

<u>5.</u> Only sealed responses will be accepted. Faxed or electronically transmitted responses will not be accepted. Sealed responses may be submitted on any or all items, unless stated otherwise.

Responses must be provided in a three-ring binder or report cover using 8.5 x 11 paper clearly identified with the name of the Offeror's company and the solicitation name and number on both the outside front cover and vertical spine.

Tabs should be used to separate the proposal into sections. The following items identified must be included behind the tabs listed below. Each section should contain both the section of the RFP referenced and the Offeror's response to that section. Offerors failing to organize in the manner listed may be considered non-responsive and may not be evaluated.

6. Binder Tabs:

- Tab 1 Draft Contract and Offer and Contract Signature Form (Appendix A)
 - a. Terms and Conditions Acceptance Form (Appendix B)
- Tab 2 Products/Pricing
- Tab 3 Performance Capability
 - a. OMNIA Partners documents (Appendix D)
- Tab 4 Qualification and Experience
 - a. References
- Tab 5 Value Add
- Tab 6 Additional Required Documents (Appendix C)



- a. Acknowledgment and Acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy (Appendix C, Doc #1)
- b. Antitrust Certification Statement (Tex. Government Code § 2155.005) (Appendix C, Doc #2)
- Implementation of House Bill 1295 Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295) (Appendix C, Doc #3)
- d. Texas Government Code 2270 Verification Form (Appendix C, Doc #4)
- e. Any additional agreements Offeror will require Participating Agencies to sign
- 7. Additional Agreements: If an Offeror requires additional agreements, i.e., master service agreement, end user licensing agreement, etc. a copy of the proposed agreement must be included with the proposal. Any additional agreements provided by the Offeror are complimentary to the terms and conditions stated herein or for the use of Participating Public Agencies and shall not replace Appendix A.
- 8. Open Records Policy: Proposals submitted in response to this RFP become a matter of public record subject to release after Contracts are executed. If an Offeror believes its response, or parts of its response, may be exempt from disclosure, the Offeror must specify page-by-page and line-by-line the parts of the response, which it believes, are exempt. In addition, the Offeror must specify which exception(s) are applicable and provide detailed reasons to substantiate the exception(s). Offeror must provide this information on the "Acknowledgement and Acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy" (Appendix C, Doc #1). Any unmarked information will be considered public information and released, if requested under the Public Information Act. Price is not confidential and will not be withheld.

The determination of whether information is confidential and not subject to disclosure is the duty of the Office of Attorney General (OAG). Region 4 ESC must provide the OAG sufficient information to render an opinion and therefore, vague and general claims to confidentiality by the Offeror are not acceptable. Region 4 ESC must comply with the opinions of the OAG. Region 4 ESC assumes no responsibility for asserting legal arguments on behalf of any Offeror or Contractor. Offeror is advised to consult with their legal counsel concerning disclosure issues resulting from this procurement process and to take precautions to safeguard trade secrets and other proprietary information. After completion of award, these documents will be available for public inspection.

- 9. <u>Disclosures:</u> By signing the Offer and Contract Signature Form, Offeror affirms:
 - a) Offeror has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor or service to a public servant in connection with this proposal and any subsequent Contract.
 - Offerors must include a complete description of any and all relationships that might be considered a conflict of interest in doing business with Region 4 ESC.
 - b) To the best of Offeror's knowledge, the proposal has been arrived at independently, and is submitted without collusion with anyone to obtain information or gain any favoritism that would in any way limit competition or give an unfair advantage over other Offerors or potential Offerors in the award of a Contract resulting from this RFP.



- c) Offeror is not currently delinquent in the payment of any franchise taxes.
- d) The individual signing the submittal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract.
- Maiver: By submitting a proposal, Offeror expressly agrees to waive any claim it has or may have against Region 4 ESC, its directors, officers, its trustees, or agents arising out of or in connection with (1) the administration, evaluation, recommendation of any proposal; (2) any requirements under the solicitation, proposal package, or related documents; (3) the rejection of any proposal or any part of any proposal; and/or (4) the award of a Contract, if any.

Region 4 ESC shall not be responsible or liable for any costs incurred by Offerors or the successful Offeror in connection with responding to the RFP, preparing for oral presentations, preparing and submitting a proposal, entering or negotiating the terms of a Contract, or any other expenses incurred by an Offeror. The Offeror is wholly responsible for any such costs and expenses and shall not be reimbursed in any manner by Region 4 ESC.

- 11. Conditions of Submitting Proposal: Submission of a proposal confers no right on an Offeror to an award or Contract. Region 4 ESC, in its sole discretion and for any reason or no reason, reserves the rights to reject any or all proposals, accept only a part of any proposal, accept the proposal deemed most advantageous to Region 4 ESC, and waive any technicalities. The issuance of this RFP does not obligate Region 4 ESC to make an award or negotiate or execute a Contract. Prior to submission due date and time, Region 4 ESC reserves the right to amend the terms and provisions of the RFP, extend the deadline for submission of proposals, or withdraw the RFP entirely for any reason solely at Region 4 ESC's discretion. A proposal may be rejected if it fails to meet any requirement of this RFP.
- 12. Mailing of Proposals: All proposals submitted in response to the solicitation must be clearly identified as listed below with the solicitation number, title, name and address of the company responding. All packages must be clearly identified as listed below, sealed and delivered to the Region 4 ESC office no later than the submittal deadline assigned for this solicitation.

From	
Company	
Address	
City, State, Zip	
Solicitation Name and Number	Due Date and Time

- 13. Amendment of Proposal: A proposal may be amended prior to the time of opening by submitting a sealed letter to the location indicated on the front page of this solicitation.
- 14. Withdrawal of Proposals: Withdrawal of proposals prior to the opening date will be permitted by a written letter or electronic mail from the Offeror. Telephonic or oral withdrawals shall not be considered. After the opening date consideration may be given in cases where Offeror advises that it made a clerical error that is substantially lower than it intended. In such case, Offeror must provide written notice of their desire to withdraw, along with supporting documents, within 3 business days of receiving the acceptance letter or of being requested by Region 4 ESC for clarification of the proposal, whichever is later. Any Contract entered into



- prior to Region 4 ESC receiving notice must be honored. No Offeror should assume their withdrawal request has been accepted unless, and until, they receive written acknowledgment and acceptance of their proposal withdrawal.
- 15. Offer and Acceptance Period: In order to allow for an adequate evaluation, Region 4 ESC requires a proposal in response to this RFP to be valid and irrevocable for one-hundred twenty (120) days after the proposal due date and time.
- 16. Non-Responsive Proposals: All proposals will be reviewed for responsiveness to the material requirements of the solicitation. A proposal that is not materially responsive shall not be eligible for further consideration for award of the Contract, and the Offeror shall receive notice of the non-award of its proposal.
- 17. <u>Discussions:</u> Region 4 ESC reserves the right to conduct discussion with Offerors for the purpose of eliminating minor irregularities, informalities, or apparent clerical mistakes in the proposal in order to clarify a proposal and assure full understanding of, and responsiveness to, the RFP requirements.
- 18. Negotiations: In the event Region 4 ESC decides to conduct negotiations, exclusive or concurrent negotiations may be conducted with Offerors reasonably susceptible for award. During the course of negotiations, no Offeror's proposal, including pricing, shall be revealed to any other Offeror or to any other person who is not involved with the evaluation process. Exclusive or concurrent negotiations shall not constitute a Contract award, nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful Offeror. In the event Region 4 ESC deems negotiations are not progressing, Region 4 ESC may formally terminate these negotiations and may enter into subsequent exclusive or concurrent negotiations with the next most qualified Offeror(s).
- 19. Best and Final Offer: Region 4 ESC, in its sole discretion, may request Offerors reasonably susceptible for award to submit a Best and Final Offer. Offerors must submit their Best and Final Offers in writing. If an Offeror does not respond to the request for a Best and Final Offer, that Offeror's most recent prior submission will be considered its Best and Final Offer.
- 20. Specifications: When a solicitation contains a specification that states no substitutions, no deviation from this requirement will be permitted. Offeror must comply with the true intent of the specifications and drawings and not take advantage of any unintentional error or omission. In cases where no type and kind of product is specified, specifications have been developed to indicate minimal standards as to the usage, materials, and contents based on the needs of the members. References to manufacturer's specifications ("Design Guides"), when used by Region 4 ESC, are to be considered informative to give the Offeror information as to the general style, type and kind requested. Responses proposing goods, materials or equipment regularly produced by a reputable manufacturer shall be evaluated by Region 4 ESC which will, in its sole discretion, determine whether such proposed goods, materials or equipment are substantially equivalent to the Design Guides, considering quality, workmanship, economy of operation, and suitability for the purpose intended. Offerors should include all documentation required to evaluate whether or not their proposed goods, materials or equipment are substantially equivalent to the Design Guides.
- 21. Quality of Materials or Services: Offeror shall state the brand name and number of the materials being provided. If none is indicated, it is understood that the Offeror is proposing the exact brand name and number specified or mentioned in the solicitation. However, unless specifically stated otherwise, comparable substitutions will be permitted in cases where the



- material is equal to that specified, considering quality, workmanship, economy of operation and suitability for the purpose intended.
- 22. Samples: Upon request, samples shall be furnished, free of cost, within seven (7) days after receiving notice of such request. By submitting the proposal Offeror certifies that all materials conform to all applicable requirements of this solicitation and of those required by law. Offeror agrees to bear the costs for laboratory testing, if results show the sample does not comply with solicitation requirements. Submissions may no longer be considered for failing to submit samples as requested.
- 23. Formation of Contract: A response to this solicitation is an offer to contract with Region 4 ESC based upon the terms, conditions, scope of work, and specifications contained in this request. A solicitation does not become a Contract until it is awarded by Region 4 ESC. A Contract is formed when Region 4 ESC's board signs the Offer and Contract Signature Form. The signed Offer and Contract Signature Form provided with the RFP response eliminates the need for a formal signing process.
- 24. <u>Multiple Awards</u>: Region 4 ESC reserves the right to award Contract(s) to multiple Offerors. The decision to award multiple Contracts, award only one Contract, or to make no awards rests solely with Region 4 ESC.
- 25. Non-Exclusive: Any Contract resulting from this solicitation shall be awarded with the understanding and agreement it is for the sole convenience and benefit of Region 4 ESC. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to obtain like goods and services from other sources.
- 26. Protest Procedure: Any protest of an award or proposed award must be filed in writing within ten (10) days from the date of the official award notification and must be received by 5:00 pm Central Time. No protest shall lie for a claim that the selected Offeror is not a responsible Offeror. Protests shall be filed with Robert Zingelmann, Chief Financial Officer, Finance and Operations Services, and sent to the Region 4 ESC office at: 7145 West Tidwell Road, Houston, TX 77092. Protests shall include the following:
 - a) Name, address and telephone number of protester;
 - b) Original signature of protester or its representative;
 - c) Identification of the solicitation by RFP number;
 - d) Detailed statement of legal and factual grounds including copies of relevant documents; and
 - e) the form of relief requested.

Any protest review and action shall be considered final with no further formalities being considered.



IV. EVALUATION PROCESS AND CRITERIA

- 1. A committee will review and evaluate all responses and make a recommendation for award of Contract(s). The recommendation for Contract awards will be based on the predetermined criteria factors outlined in this section, where each factor is assigned a point value based on its importance. In evaluating the responses, the following predetermined criteria is considered:
- a) Products, Pricing and Availability (40 Points)
- b) Performance Capability (30 Points)
- c) Qualification and Experience (20 Points)
- d) Value Add (10 Points)
 - 2. Offeror's proposal should, at a minimum, include the following for Region 4 ESC's evaluation:

a) Products, Pricing and Availability

Texas Connect Program:

- Present Offeror's plans and pricing for offering service under the TEA Connect Texas
 Program. The Offeror's proposal should clearly outline any requirements Offeror proposes
 of Texas school districts and program households. Separate pricing may be submitted for
 urban and rural areas.
- ii. Describe Offeror's proposed equipment deposit and return strategy.
- iii. Should a student leave a school district, describe a school district's ability to terminate an individual household before the end of a school year.
- iv. Describes Offeror's content filtering capabilities. How do these capabilities align with the Childrens Internet Protection Act?
- v. Describe Offeror's coverage across Texas. Include known dead zones without service and any known plans to bring service to dead zone areas.
- vi. Describe Offeror's ability to provide multi-lingual support to households.
- vii. Is pricing available for all products and services?
- viii. Describe any shipping charges.
- ix. Provide pricing for warranties on all products and services.
- x. Describe any return and restocking fees.
- xi. Describe any additional discounts or rebates available. Additional discounts or rebates may be offered for large quantity orders, single ship to location, growth, annual spend, guaranteed quantity, etc.
- xii. Describe payment methods offered.
- xiii. Propose the frequency of updates to the Offeror's pricing structure. Describe any proposed indices to guide price adjustments. If offering a catalog contract with discounts by category, while changes in individual pricing may change, the category discounts should not change over the term of the Contract.
- xiv. Describe how future product introductions will be priced and align with Contract pricing proposed.
- xv. Provide any additional information relevant to this section.

<u>Not to Exceed Pricing.</u> Region 4 ESC requests pricing be submitted as not to exceed pricing. Unlike fixed pricing, the Contractor can adjust submitted pricing lower if needed but, cannot exceed original pricing submitted. Contractor must allow for lower pricing to be available for



similar product and service purchases. Cost plus pricing as a primary pricing structure is not acceptable.

b) Performance Capability

- Include a detailed response to Appendix D, Exhibit A, OMNIA Partners Response for Cooperative Contract. Responses should highlight experience and describe how volume will be tracked and reported to OMNIA Partners.
- ii. The successful Offeror will be required to sign Appendix D, Exhibit B, OMNIA Partners Administration Agreement prior to Contract award. Offerors should have any reviews required to sign the document prior to submitting a response. Offeror's response should include any proposed exceptions to OMNIA Partners Administration Agreement on Appendix B, Terms and Conditions Acceptance Form.
- iii. Include completed Appendix D, Exhibits F. Federal Funds Certifications.
- iv. Describe the Offeror's understanding of the Scope of Work and the TEA Connect Texas Program requirements. Detail how the Offeror proposes to meet each of the requirements.
- v. Describe Offeror's broadband data performance standards.
- vi. Describe each service's network reliability. Include disaster recovery plans and business continuity plans.
- vii. Describe the security policies, measures and any certifications or standards the Offeror has in place to protect privacy and ensure security of information and data transmitted through the Offerors services and products. Include how Offeror ensures data encryption and protect data. Include a description of how the Offeror protects against outside threats and, if compromised, how the Offeror responds to security breaches.
- viii. Describe how planned outages are communicated.
- ix. Describe how Offeror responds to emergency requests and orders.
- X. What is Offeror's average on time installation rate? Describe Offeror's history of meeting the installation, shipping, and delivery timelines.
- xi. Describe Offeror's product return and restocking policy.
- xii. Describe Offeror's customer service/problem resolution process. Include hours of operation, number of services, etc.
- xiii. Describe Offeror's invoicing process. Include payment terms and acceptable methods of payments. Offerors shall describe any associated fees pertaining to credit cards/p-cards.
- xiv. Describe Offeror's contract implementation/customer transition plan.
- xv. Describe the financial condition of Offeror.
- xvi. Provide a website link in order to review website ease of use, availability, and capabilities related to ordering, returns and reporting. Describe the website's capabilities and functionality.
- xvii. Provide any additional information relevant to this section.



c) Qualification and Experience

- i. Provide a brief history of the Offeror, including year it was established and corporate office location.
- ii. Describe Offeror's reputation in the marketplace.
- iii. Describe Offeror's reputation of products and services in the marketplace.
- iv. Describe the experience and qualification of key employees.
- v. Describe Offeror's experience working with public school districts.
- vi. Describe in detail what level of assistance will be provided under the Federal Communication Commissions E-rate discount program. Identify how much effort will be required in obtaining this funding. Specify the services available to the agency for project planning, specialized program assistance, and other services provided to the agency dealing with the e-rate program.
- vii. Describe past litigation, bankruptcy, reorganization, state investigations of entity or current officers and directors.
- viii. Provide a minimum of 10 customer references relating to the products and services within this RFP. Include entity name, contact name and title, contact phone and email, city, state, years serviced, description of services and annual volume.
- ix. Provide any additional information relevant to this section.

d) Value Add

- i. Provide any additional information related to products and services Offeror proposes to enhance and add value to the Contract.
- 3. Competitive Range: It may be necessary to establish a competitive range. Factors from the predetermined criteria will be used to make this determination. Responses not in the competitive range will not receive further award consideration. Region 4 ESC may determine establishing a competitive range is not necessary.
- <u>4. Past Performance:</u> An Offeror's past performance and actions are relevant in determining whether or not the Offeror is likely to provide quality goods and services; the administrative aspects of performance; the Offeror's history of reasonable and cooperative behavior and commitment to customer satisfaction; and generally, the Offeror's businesslike concern for the interests of the customer may be taken into consideration when evaluating proposals, although not specifically mentioned in the RFP.
- <u>5.</u> Additional Investigations: Region 4 ESC reserves the right to make such additional investigations as it deems necessary to establish the capability of any Offeror.



APPENDIX A

DRAFT CONTRACT

This Contract ("Contract") is made as of	, 2021 by and between	
	("Contractor") and Region 4 Education Service Ce	enter
("Region 4 ESC") for the purchase of Intern	et Service Provider for TEA Connect Texas Program	("the
products and services").		-

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Region 4 ESC issued Request for Proposal Number 21-08 for ("RFP"), to which Contractor provided a response ("Proposal"); and

WHEREAS, Region 4 ESC selected Contractor's Proposal and wishes to engage Contractor in providing the services/materials described in the RFP and Proposal;

WHEREAS, both parties agree and understand the following pages will constitute the Contract between the Contractor and Region 4 ESC, having its principal place of business at 7145 West Tidwell Road, Houston, TX 77092.

WHEREAS, Contractor included, in writing, any required exceptions or deviations from these terms, conditions, and specifications; and it is further understood that, if agreed to by Region 4 ESC, said exceptions or deviations are incorporated into the Contract.

WHEREAS, this Contract consists of the provisions set forth below, including provisions of all attachments referenced herein. In the event of a conflict between the provisions set forth below and those contained in any attachment, the provisions set forth below shall control.

WHEREAS, the Contract will provide that any state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit ("Public Agencies") may purchase products and services at prices indicated in the Contract upon the Public Agency's registration with OMNIA Partners.

- 1) Term of agreement. The term of the Contract is for a period of three (3) years unless terminated, canceled, or extended as otherwise provided herein. Region 4 ESC shall have the right to renew the Contract for two (2) additional one-year periods or portions thereof. Region 4 ESC shall review the Contract prior to the renewal date and notify the Contractor of Region 4 ESC's intent renew the Contract. Contractor may elect not to renew by providing three hundred sixty-five days' (365) notice to Region 4 ESC. Notwithstanding the expiration of the initial term or any subsequent term or all renewal options, Region 4 ESC and Contractor may mutually agree to extend the term of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges and understands Region 4 ESC is under no obligation whatsoever to extend the term of this Agreement.
- <u>2) Scope:</u> Contractor shall perform all duties, responsibilities, and obligations, set forth in this agreement, and described in the RFP, incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth herein.
- 3) Form of Contract. The form of Contract shall be the RFP, the Offeror's proposal and Best and Final Offer(s).



- 4) Order of Precedence. In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract as accepted by Region 4 ESC, the following order of precedence shall prevail:
 - i. This Contract
 - ii. Offeror's Best and Final Offer
 - iii. Offeror's proposal
 - iv. RFP and any addenda
- 5) <u>Commencement of Work.</u> The Contractor is cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide any material or service under this Contract until Contractor receives a purchase order for such work or is otherwise directed to do so in writing by Region 4 ESC.
- 6) <u>Entire Agreement (Parol evidence)</u>. The Contract, as specified above, represents the final written expression of agreement. All agreements are contained herein and no other agreements or representations that materially alter it are acceptable.
- 7) <u>Assignment of Contract.</u> No assignment of Contract may be made without the prior written approval of Region 4 ESC. Contractor is required to notify Region 4 ESC when any material change in operations is made (i.e., bankruptcy, change of ownership, merger, etc.).
- 8) Novation. If Contractor sells or transfers all assets or the entire portion of the assets used to perform this Contract, a successor in interest must guarantee to perform all obligations under this Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to accept or reject any new party. A change of name agreement will not change the contractual obligations of Contractor.
- 9) <u>Contract Alterations.</u> No alterations to the terms of this Contract shall be valid or binding unless authorized and signed by Region 4 ESC.
- 10) Adding Authorized Distributors/Dealers. Contractor is prohibited from authorizing additional distributors or dealers, other than those identified at the time of submitting their proposal, to sell under the Contract without notification and prior written approval from Region 4 ESC. Contractor must notify Region 4 ESC each time it wishes to add an authorized distributor or dealer. Purchase orders and payment can only be made to the Contractor unless otherwise approved by Region 4 ESC. Pricing provided to members by added distributors or dealers must also be less than or equal to the Contractor's pricing.

11) TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

- a) <u>Cancellation for Non-Performance or Contractor Deficiency.</u> Region 4 ESC may terminate the Contract if purchase volume is determined to be low volume in any 12-month period. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to cancel the whole or any part of this Contract due to failure by Contractor to carry out any obligation, term, or condition of the contract. Region 4 ESC may issue a written deficiency notice to Contractor for acting or failing to act in any of the following:
 - i. Providing material that does not meet the specifications of the Contract;
 - ii. Providing work or material was not awarded under the Contract;
 - iii. Failing to adequately perform the services set forth in the scope of work and specifications;
 - iv. Failing to complete required work or furnish required materials within a reasonable amount of time;



- v. Failing to make progress in performance of the Contract or giving Region 4 ESC reason to believe Contractor will not or cannot perform the requirements of the Contract; or
- vi. Performing work or providing services under the Contract prior to receiving an authorized purchase order.

Upon receipt of a written deficiency notice, Contractor shall have ten (10) days to provide a satisfactory response to Region 4 ESC. Failure to adequately address all issues of concern may result in Contract cancellation. Upon cancellation under this paragraph, all goods, materials, work, documents, data and reports prepared by Contractor under the Contract shall immediately become the property of Region 4 ESC.

- <u>b</u>) <u>Termination for Cause.</u> If, for any reason, Contractor fails to fulfill its obligation in a timely manner, or Contractor violates any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Contract Region 4 ESC reserves the right to terminate the Contract immediately and pursue all other applicable remedies afforded by law. Such termination shall be effective by delivery of notice, to the Contractor, specifying the effective date of termination. In such event, all documents, data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps, models and reports prepared by Contractor will become the property of the Region 4 ESC. If such event does occur, Contractor will be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for the satisfactory work completed on such documents.
- <u>O</u> <u>Delivery/Service Failures</u>. Failure to deliver goods or services within the time specified, or within a reasonable time period as interpreted by the purchasing agent or failure to make replacements or corrections of rejected articles/services when so requested shall constitute grounds for the Contract to be terminated. In the event Region 4 ESC must purchase in an open market, Contractor agrees to reimburse Region 4 ESC, within a reasonable time period, for all expenses incurred.
- <u>d)</u> Force Majeure. If by reason of Force Majeure, either party hereto shall be rendered unable wholly or in part to carry out its obligations under this Agreement then such party shall give notice and full particulars of Force Majeure in writing to the other party within a reasonable time after occurrence of the event or cause relied upon, and the obligation of the party giving such notice, so far as it is affected by such Force Majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability then claimed, except as hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and such party shall endeavor to remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch.

The term Force Majeure as employed herein, shall mean acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, act of public enemy, orders of any kind of government of the United States or the State of Texas or any civil or military authority; insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; lighting; earthquake; fires; hurricanes; storms; floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines or canals, or other causes not reasonably within the control of the party claiming such inability. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that any Force Majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require the settlement of strikes and lockouts by acceding to the demands of the opposing party or parties when such settlement is unfavorable in the judgment of the party having the difficulty.

- <u>Standard Cancellation.</u> Region 4 ESC may cancel this Contract in whole or in part by providing written notice. The cancellation will take effect 30 business days after the other party receives the notice of cancellation. After the 30th business day all work will cease following completion of final purchase order.
- 12) <u>Licenses.</u> Contractor shall maintain in current status all federal, state and local licenses, bonds and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by Contractor. Contractor



shall remain fully informed of and in compliance with all ordinances and regulations pertaining to the lawful provision of services under the Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to stop work and/or cancel the Contract if Contractor's license(s) expire, lapse, are suspended or terminated.

- 13) Survival Clause. All applicable software license agreements, warranties or service agreements that are entered into between Contractor and Region 4 ESC under the terms and conditions of the Contract shall survive the expiration or termination of the Contract. All Purchase Orders issued and accepted by Contractor shall survive expiration or termination of the Contract.
- 14) <u>Delivery.</u> Conforming product shall be shipped within 7 days of receipt of Purchase Order. If delivery is not or cannot be made within this time period, the Contractor must receive authorization for the delayed delivery. The order may be canceled if the estimated shipping time is not acceptable. All deliveries shall be freight prepaid, F.O.B. Destination and shall be included in all pricing offered unless otherwise clearly stated in writing.
- 15) Inspection & Acceptance. If defective or incorrect material is delivered, Region 4 ESC may make the determination to return the material to the Contractor at no cost to Region 4 ESC. The Contractor agrees to pay all shipping costs for the return shipment. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging the return of the defective or incorrect material.
- 16) Payments. Payment shall be made after satisfactory performance, in accordance with all provisions thereof, and upon receipt of a properly completed invoice.
- 17) Price Adjustments. Should it become necessary or proper during the term of this Contract to make any change in design or any alterations that will increase price, Region 4 ESC must be notified immediately. Price increases must be approved by Region 4 ESC and no payment for additional materials or services, beyond the amount stipulated in the Contract shall be paid without prior approval. All price increases must be supported by manufacturer documentation, or a formal cost justification letter. Contractor must honor previous prices for thirty (30) days after approval and written notification from Region 4 ESC. It is the Contractor's responsibility to keep all pricing up to date and on file with Region 4 ESC. All price changes must be provided to Region 4 ESC, using the same format as was provided and accepted in the Contractor's proposal.

Price reductions may be offered at any time during Contract. Special, time-limited reductions are permissible under the following conditions: 1) reduction is available to all users equally; 2) reduction is for a specific period, normally not less than thirty (30) days; and 3) original price is not exceeded after the time-limit. Contractor shall offer Region 4 ESC any published price reduction during the Contract term.

18) Audit Rights. Contractor shall, at its sole expense, maintain appropriate due diligence of all purchases made by Region 4 ESC and any entity that utilizes this Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to audit the accounting for a period of three (3) years from the time such purchases are made. This audit right shall survive termination of this Agreement for a period of one (1) year from the effective date of termination. Region 4 ESC shall have the authority to conduct random audits of Contractor's pricing at Region 4 ESC's sole cost and expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that Region 4 ESC is made aware of any pricing being offered that is materially inconsistent with the pricing under this agreement, Region 4 ESC shall have the ability to conduct an extensive audit of Contractor's pricing at Contractor's



sole cost and expense. Region 4 ESC may conduct the audit internally or may engage a third-party auditing firm. In the event of an audit, the requested materials shall be provided in the format and at the location designated by Region 4 ESC.

- <u>Discontinued Products.</u> If a product or model is discontinued by the manufacturer, Contractor may substitute a new product or model if the replacement product meets or exceeds the specifications and performance of the discontinued model and if the discount is the same or greater than the discontinued model.
- New Products/Services. New products and/or services that meet the scope of work may be added to the Contract. Pricing shall be equivalent to the percentage discount for other products. Contractor may replace or add product lines if the line is replacing or supplementing products, is equal or superior to the original products, is discounted similarly or greater than the original discount, and if the products meet the requirements of the Contract. No products and/or services may be added to avoid competitive procurement requirements. Region 4 ESC may require additions to be submitted with documentation from Members demonstrating an interest in, or a potential requirement for, the new product or service. Region 4 ESC may reject any additions without cause.
- <u>Options.</u> Optional equipment for products under Contract may be added to the Contract at the time they become available under the following conditions: 1) the option is priced at a discount similar to other options; 2) the option is an enhancement to the unit that improves performance or reliability.
- <u>Warranty Conditions.</u> All supplies, equipment and services shall include manufacturer's minimum standard warranty and one (1) year labor warranty unless otherwise agreed to in writing.
- <u>Site Cleanup.</u> Contractor shall clean up and remove all debris and rubbish resulting from their work as required or directed. Upon completion of the work, the premises shall be left in good repair and an orderly, neat, clean, safe and unobstructed condition.
- <u>Site Preparation.</u> Contractor shall not begin a project for which the site has not been prepared, unless Contractor does the preparation work at no cost, or until Region 4 ESC includes the cost of site preparation in a purchase order. Site preparation includes, but is not limited to: moving furniture, installing wiring for networks or power, and similar pre-installation requirements.
- <u>Registered Sex Offender Restrictions.</u> For work to be performed at schools, Contractor agrees no employee or employee of a subcontractor who has been adjudicated to be a registered sex offender will perform work at any time when students are or are reasonably expected to be present. Contractor agrees a violation of this condition shall be considered a material breach and may result in the cancellation of the purchase order at Region 4 ESC's discretion. Contractor must identify any additional costs associated with compliance of this term. If no costs are specified, compliance with this term will be provided at no additional charge.
- <u>Safety measures.</u> Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of employees on the worksite and shall erect and properly maintain all necessary safeguards for protection of workers and the public. Contractor shall post warning signs against all hazards created by its operation and work in progress. Proper precautions shall be taken pursuant to state law



and standard practices to protect workers, general public and existing structures from injury or damage.

- 27) Smoking. Persons working under the Contract shall adhere to local smoking policies. Smoking will only be permitted in posted areas or off premises.
- 28) Stored materials. Upon prior written agreement between the Contractor and Region 4 ESC, payment may be made for materials not incorporated in the work but delivered and suitably stored at the site or some other location, for installation at a later date. An inventory of the stored materials must be provided to Region 4 ESC prior to payment. Such materials must be stored and protected in a secure location and be insured for their full value by the Contractor against loss and damage. Contractor agrees to provide proof of coverage and additionally insured upon request. Additionally, if stored offsite, the materials must also be clearly identified as property of Region 4 ESC and be separated from other materials. Region 4 ESC must be allowed reasonable opportunity to inspect and take inventory of stored materials, on or offsite, as necessary. Until final acceptance by Region 4 ESC, it shall be the Contractor's responsibility to protect all materials and equipment. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title for all work, materials and equipment shall pass to Region 4 ESC upon final acceptance.
- 29) Funding Out Clause. A Contract for the acquisition, including lease, of real or personal property is a commitment of Region 4 ESC's current revenue only. Region 4 ESC retains the right to terminate the Contract at the expiration of each budget period during the term of the Contract and is conditioned on a best effort attempt by Region 4 ESC to obtain appropriate funds for payment of the contract.
- 30) Indemnity. Contractor shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless both Region 4 ESC and its administrators, employees and agents against all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or resulting from the actions of the Contractor, Contractor employees or subcontractors in the preparation of the solicitation and the later execution of the Contract. Any litigation involving either Region 4 ESC, its administrators and employees and agents will be in Harris County, Texas.
- 31) Marketing. Contractor agrees to allow Region 4 ESC to use their name and logo within website, marketing materials and advertisement. Any use of Region 4 ESC name and logo or any form of publicity, inclusive of press releases, regarding this Contract by Contractor must have prior approval from Region 4 ESC.
- 32) <u>Certificates of Insurance.</u> Certificates of insurance shall be delivered to the Region 4 ESC prior to commencement of work. The Contractor shall give Region 4 ESC a minimum of ten (10) days' notice prior to any modifications or cancellation of policies. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors performing any work to maintain coverage as specified.
- 33) <u>Legal Obligations.</u> It is Contractor's responsibility to be aware of and comply with all local, state, and federal laws governing the sale of products/services and shall comply with all laws while fulfilling the Contract. Applicable laws and regulation must be followed even if not specifically identified herein.

OFFER AND CONTRACT SIGNATURE FORM

The undersigned hereby offers and, if awarded, agrees to furnish goods and/or services in strict compliance with the terms, specifications and conditions at the prices proposed within response unless noted in writing.

Company Name	Charter Communications Operating, LLC	
Address	12405 Powerscourt Drive	
City/State/Zip	St.Louis, MO 63131	
Telephone No.	(512) 531-3264	
Email Address	Lynne.Bell@charter.com	
Printed Name	Lynne Bell	
Title	Vice President	
Authorized signature	Lynne P. Bell Lynne P. Bell (May 17, 2021 12:02 PDT)	
Accepted by Region 4 ESC	: :	
Contract No.	_	
Initial Contract Term	to	-
Region 4 ESC Authorized Bo	pard Member Date	
Print Name		
Region 4 ESC Authorized Bo	pard Member Date	
Print Name		

ynne P. Bell E-signed 2021-05-17 12:02PM PDT lynne.bell@charter.com



APPENDIX B

TERMS & CONDITIONS ACCEPTANCE FORM

Signature on the Offer and Contract Signature form certifies complete acceptance of the terms and conditions in this solicitation and draft Contract except as noted below with proposed substitute language (additional pages may be attached, if necessary). The provisions of the RFP cannot be modified without the express written approval of Region 4 ESC. If a proposal is returned with modifications to the draft Contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by Region 4 ESC, the Contract provisions contained in the RFP shall prevail.

Check one of the following responses:

- Offeror takes no exceptions to the terms and conditions of the RFP and draft Contract. (Note: If none are listed below, it is understood that no exceptions/deviations are taken.)
- X Offeror takes the following exceptions to the RFP and draft Contract. All exceptions must be clearly explained, reference the corresponding term to which Offeror is taking exception and clearly state any proposed modified language, proposed additional terms to the RFP and draft Contract must be included:

(Note: Unacceptable exceptions may remove Offeror's proposal from consideration for award. Region 4 ESC shall be the sole judge on the acceptance of exceptions and modifications and the decision shall be final.

If an offer is made with modifications to the contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing, the contract provisions contained in the RFP shall prevail.)

Section/Page	Term, Condition, or Specification	Exception/Proposed Modification	Accepted (For Region 4 ESC's use)
Scope of Work			
E. TEA Connect Texas Program and Requirements	The TEA Connect Texas program is specific to Texas kindergarten through 12th grade LEAs. Services include Internet service and any necessary equipment to provide wired broadband service to support the TEA Connect Texas program.a. Bandwidth speeds: minimally, 25 MBps download and 3 Mbps upload	Please review Spectrum's Service Proposal for pricing, Service Location(s), Initial Order Term, bandwidth information, and service offering. Spectrum's Service Level Agreement shall govern circuit availability and data caps.	
2	b. Circuit Availability: 99.99% uptime		



1			
		c. Data Cap: Unlimited data	
ì		usage with no data throttling	
	'	d. Content Filtering:	
-		Accommodate standard	
-		Children's Internet Protection Act	
-		(CIPA) content filtering	
1		requirements as requested by	
1		each Participating Public Agency	
		e. Net Neutrality: Service cannot	
١		be deprioritized versus other	
		customers at any time	
ŀ		customers at any time	Please review Spectrum's
		2. To keep up with the evolving	Service Proposal for pricing,
	E. TEA Connect	industry, all new sources of	Service Proposal for pricing,
	Texas Program and	Internet connections are	Order Term, bandwidth
ı	Requirements	contemplated and included in the	information, and service
		scope.	I I
			offering. The ETS is staffed 24 hours a
			day, seven (7) days a week; 365 days a year and has a
			front line NOC staff and a
١			
	E. TEA Connect		Tiered Support Group. The ETS service levels (i.e.,
	exas Program and	5. Customer Service.	l ' I
	Requirements		response to inbound calls
			within 30 seconds) have been
			in excess of 90% for years and are one of our primary support
			metrics. The ETS is available
			at 1 (866) 603-3199.
	III. INSTRUCTIONS		at 1 (000) 003-3193.
	TO OFFERORS		
	10 011 ERORS		Spectrum's bid is based upon
			services being delivered under
		If an Offeror requires additional	the terms of the Spectrum
		agreements, i.e., master service	Enterprise Service Agreement
		agreement, end user licensing	which incorporates the
		agreement, etc. a copy of the	Spectrum Enterprise
		proposed agreement must be	Commercial Terms of Service
	7. Additional	included with the proposal. Any	(available at
	Agreements:	additional agreements provided	https://enterprise.spectrum.co
		by the Offeror are complimentary	m/legal/se-terms-and-
		to the terms and conditions	conditions.html or any
		stated herein or for the use of	successor URL), plus any
		Participating Public Agencies and	related attachments, Service
		shall not replace Appendix A.	Level Agreements and
ž		onali not ropidoo Appendix A.	applicable Service Order(s)
((collectively, the "Agreement").
1	-		(donotively, the Agreement /.



		Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP
8. Open Records Policy	Proposals submitted in response to this RFP become a matter of public record subject to release after Contracts are executed. If an Offeror believes its response, or parts of its response, may be exempt from disclosure, the Offeror must specify page-bypage and line-by-line the parts of the response, which it believes, are exempt. In addition, the Offeror must specify which exception(s) are applicable and provide detailed reasons to substantiate the exception(s). Offeror must provide this information on the "Acknowledgement and Acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy" (Appendix C, Doc #1). Any unmarked information will be considered public information and released, if requested under the Public Information Act. Price is not confidential and will not be withheld.	Confidentiality. Customer agrees to maintain in confidence, and not to disclose to third parties or use, except for such use as is expressly permitted herein, the Spectrum Materials and any other information and materials provided by Spectrum in connection with this Service Agreement, including but not limited to the contents of this Service Agreement and any Service Orders. Customer may not issue a press release, public announcement or other public statements regarding the Service Agreement without Spectrum's prior consent.
9. Disclosures	d) The individual signing the submittal is an authorized agent for the Offeror and has the authority to bind the Offeror to the Contract.	Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service



		Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").	
		Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP	
11. Conditions of Submitting Proposal:	Submission of a proposal confers no right on an Offeror to an award or Contract. Region 4 ESC, in its sole discretion and for any reason or no reason, reserves the rights to reject any or all proposals, accept only a part of any proposal, accept the proposal deemed most advantageous to Region 4 ESC, and waive any technicalities. The issuance of this RFP does not obligate Region 4 ESC to make an award or negotiate or execute a Contract. Prior to submission due date and time, Region 4 ESC reserves the right to amend the terms and provisions of the RFP, extend the deadline for submission of proposals, or withdraw the RFP entirely for any reason solely at Region 4 ESC's discretion. A proposal may be rejected if it fails to meet any requirement of this RFP.	In the event only a portion of Spectrum's proposal is accepted, Spectrum reserves the right to further negotiate the terms of such partial acceptance prior to final bid award acceptance by Spectrum.	



22. Formation of Contract:	A response to this solicitation is an offer to contract with Region 4 ESC based upon the terms, conditions, scope of work, and specifications contained in this request. A solicitation does not become a Contract until it is awarded by Region 4 ESC. A Contract is formed when Region 4 ESC's board signs the Offer and Contract Signature Form. The signed Offer and Contract Signature Form provided with the RFP response eliminates the need for a formal signing process.	Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").
		Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP
APPENDIX A		



			Spectrum's bid is based upon
			services being delivered under
			the terms of the Spectrum
		WHEREAS this Contract consists	Enterprise Service Agreement
		WHEREAS, this Contract consists	which incorporates the
		of the provisions set forth below,	Spectrum Enterprise
		including provisions of all	Commercial Terms of Service
550174	•	attachments referenced herein. In	(available at
RECITAL	_8	the event of a conflict between	https://enterprise.spectrum.co
		the provisions set forth below	m/legal/se-terms-and-
		and those contained in any	conditions.html or any
		attachment, the provisions set	successor URL), plus any
		forth below shall control.	related attachments, Service
			Level Agreements and
			applicable Service Order(s)
			(collectively, the "Agreement").
			Spectrum's bid is based upon
			services being delivered under
			the terms of the Spectrum
			Enterprise Service Agreement
			which incorporates the
			Spectrum Enterprise
		In the event of a conflict in the	Commercial Terms of Service
		provisions of the Contract as	(available at
		accepted by Region 4 ESC, the	https://enterprise.spectrum.co
		following order of precedence	m/legal/se-terms-and-
		shall prevail: i. This Contract	conditions.html or any
			successor URL), plus any
4) Order	of		related attachments, Service
Precede	nce		Level Agreements and
			applicable Service Order(s)
			(collectively, the "Agreement").
		ii. Offeror's Best and Final Offer	
			Spectrum remains open to
			negotiating the Agreement, and
			once a mutually negotiated
		iii. Offeror's proposal	contract is entered into by the
		Stroror o proposar	parties, it shall supersede and
			replace any terms and
			conditions of the RFP
		iv. RFP and any addenda	
		and any addonad	



(Spectrum's bid is based upon	
			services being delivered under	
			the terms of the Spectrum	
			Enterprise Service Agreement	
			which incorporates the	
			Spectrum Enterprise	
			Commercial Terms of Service	
			(available at	
			https://enterprise.spectrum.co	
			m/legal/se-terms-and-	
			conditions.html or any	
	6) Entire Agreement		successor URL), plus any	
	6) Entire Agreement	x	related attachments, Service	
	(Parol evidence).		I '	
			Level Agreements and	
			applicable Service Order(s)	
			(collectively, the "Agreement").	
			Spectrum remains open to	
			negotiating the Agreement, and	
			once a mutually negotiated	
			contract is entered into by the	
			parties, it shall supersede and	
	2000 a 190		replace any terms and	
1			conditions of the RFP	
1	, <i>3</i>		Spectrum's Service Agreement	
			includes the following clause	
			1	
			related to assignment: No	
			Assignment or Transfer.	
			Customer may not assign or	
			transfer (directly or indirectly	
			by any means, including by	
			operation of law or otherwise)	
		No assignment of Contract may	this Service Agreement and the	
		be made without the prior written	associated Service Order(s), or	
		approval of Region 4 ESC.	their rights or obligations	
	7) Assignment of	Contractor is required to notify	hereunder to any other entity	
	Contract.	Region 4 ESC when any material	without first obtaining consent	
		change in operations is made	from Spectrum, and any	
		(i.e., bankruptcy, change of	assignment or transfer in	
		ownership, merger, etc.).	violation of this Section shall	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	be null and void. Spectrum	
			may assign its rights and	
			obligations under this Service	
			Agreement, in whole or in part,	
			and any Service Order(s) to	
1			affiliates controlling, controlled	
(by or under common control	
-	<u> </u>		with Spectrum, or to its	



		successor-in-interest if Spectrum sells some or all of the underlying communications system(s) without the prior approval of or notice to Customer. Customer understands and agrees that, regardless of any such assignment, the rights and obligations of Spectrum in the Service Agreement may accrue to, or be fulfilled by, any affiliate, as well as by Spectrum or its subcontractors
8) Novation.	8) Novation. If Contractor sells or transfers all assets or the entire portion of the assets used to perform this Contract, a successor in interest must guarantee to perform all obligations under this Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to accept or reject any new party. A change of name agreement will not change the contractual obligations of Contractor.	Spectrum's Service Agreement includes the following clause related to assignment: No Assignment or Transfer. Customer may not assign or transfer (directly or indirectly by any means, including by operation of law or otherwise) this Service Agreement and the associated Service Order(s), or their rights or obligations hereunder to any other entity without first obtaining consent from Spectrum, and any assignment or transfer in violation of this Section shall be null and void. Spectrum may assign its rights and obligations under this Service Agreement, in whole or in part, and any Service Order(s) to affiliates controlling, controlled by or under common control with Spectrum, or to its



		successor-in-interest if Spectrum sells some or all of the underlying communications system(s) without the prior approval of or notice to Customer. Customer understands and agrees that, regardless of any such assignment, the rights and obligations of Spectrum in the Service Agreement may accrue to, or be fulfilled by, any affiliate, as well as by
		Spectrum or its subcontractors
11) TERMINATION OF CONTRACT	Sections a, b, c, and e	Spectrum's Service Agreement includes the following clause related to termination: 13. DEFAULT, SUSPENSION OF SERVICE, AND TERMINATION. (a) Default. A Party shall be in default under this Service Agreement if it has failed to comply with the terms of this Service Agreement or any Service Orders, including without limitation the obligation to pay any amounts due, and such Party fails to correct each such noncompliance within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from the non-defaulting Party describing in reasonable detail the default or noncompliance ("Default").



(b) Mutual Termination Rights.	
Either Party may terminate this	
Service Agreement or a	
Service Order if: (i) the other	
Party is in Default; or (ii) the	
other Party liquidates, is	
adjudicated as bankrupt,	
makes an assignment for the	
benefit of creditors, invokes	
any provision of law for	
general relief from its debts,	
initiates any proceeding	
seeking general protection	
from its creditors, or is	
removed or delisted from a	
trading exchange.	
(c) Termination for	
Convenience by Customer.	
Notwithstanding any other term	
or provision in this Service	
Agreement, Customer may	
terminate a Service Order, or	
this Service Agreement, at any	
time upon thirty (30) days prior	
notice to Spectrum, subject to	
payment of all outstanding	
amounts due, payment of any	
applicable Termination	
Charges (as defined below),	
and the return of any Spectrum	
Equipment.	



(d) Spectrum's Right to Suspend. Spectrum shall have the right, at its option, without prior notice, and in addition to any other rights of Spectrum expressly set forth in this Service Agreement and any other remedies it may have under applicable law to suspend Services if Customer fails to comply with any applicable laws or regulations or this Service Agreement, or if Customer or its End Users' use of the Service is determined by Spectrum, in its sole discretion, to result in a material degradation of the Spectrum Network until Customer remedies any such noncompliance or degradation. Any suspension shall not affect Customer's on-going obligation to pay Spectrum any amounts due under this Service Agreement. If Spectrum suspends any Service, Spectrum may require the payment of reconnect or other charges before restarting the suspended Service.

(e) Termination Charges. Upon Termination, Customer must pay all Services Charges then due for Services provided through the effective date of Termination. In addition, if Termination is due to Customer Default or for Customer's convenience, Customer must pay Spectrum a termination charge (a "Termination Charge"), which the Parties recognize as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. This Termination Charge shall be equal to 100% of the unpaid balance of all Service Charges that would have been due



		throughout the applicable Order Term, including, without limitation, the outstanding balance of any and all unpaid OTCs. The foregoing terms will also apply to any partial Termination impacting one or more Service Orders, but not the entire Service Agreement.
		(f) Survival. The provisions of sections 6(c), 7(b), 7(e), 13(e), 13(f), 14, 15, 18-22 and the Attachments shall survive the termination or expiration of the Service Agreement.
11) TERMINATION OF CONTRACT	Section C : Force Majeure	Force Majeure. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Service Agreement, neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay, inconvenience, loss, liability or damage resulting from any failure or interruption of Services, directly or indirectly caused by circumstances beyond such Party's control, including but not limited to denial of use of poles or other facilities of a utility company, labor disputes, acts of war or terrorism, criminal, illegal or unlawful acts, weather, fire, flood, natural causes, mechanical or power failures, fiber cuts, governmental acts or any order, law or ordinance in any way restricting the operation of the Services (each a "Force Majeure Event"). Changes in



		economic, business, or competitive conditions shall not be considered a Force Majeure Event.
14) Delivery	Conforming product shall be shipped within 7 days of receipt of Purchase Order. If delivery is not or cannot be made within this time period, the Contractor must receive authorization for the delayed delivery. The order may be canceled if the estimated shipping time is not acceptable. All deliveries shall be freight prepaid, F.O.B. Destination and shall be included in all pricing offered unless otherwise clearly stated in writing.	Not applicable, installs shall be subject to section 5 (SERVICE LOCATION ACCESS AND INSTALLATION) of Spectrum's commercial terms: (d) Installation. Spectrum will schedule one or more installation visits with Customer. At the Customer's request, Spectrum may perform installation or maintenance on weekends or times other than during normal business hours; provided, however, Customer may be assessed reasonable, additional Service Charges based on Spectrum's actual incurred labor, material or other costs for such non-routine installation or maintenance. Customer's authorized representative must be present during installation.



If Spectrum is unable to install the Service as a result of (i) Customer's (or any End User's) failure to deliver any required materials, support or information to Spectrum; (ii) Customer's (or any End User's) failure to provide access to a Service Location: or (iii) Spectrum's inability to obtain access to equipment at the Service Location as necessary for installation of the Service, or (iv) Customer's Equipment (as defined herein) being inadequate to interconnect with the Services, then Customer shall pay Spectrum a Service Charge at Spectrum's then prevailing rates for any installation trip made by Spectrum and an additional Service Charge for each subsequent trip necessary to perform the Service installation. In addition, if Spectrum's installation of the Service is delayed as a result of Customer's actions or inactions as set forth above or if Customer is otherwise refusing or not ready to receive Services, then Spectrum will notify Customer that Spectrum is ready to finalize installation of the Services (the "Ready Notice") and may begin invoicing Service Charges as set forth in Section 7 upon the earlier of the Billing Start Date or sixty (60) days after the date of the Ready Notice.



		Customer shall perform interconnection of the Services and Spectrum Equipment with any Customer- provided or End User equipment (collectively, "Customer Equipment"), unless otherwise set forth in an Attachment or agreed in writing between the Parties, and shall conform its Customer Equipment and software, and ensure that each End User conforms its equipment and software, to the technical specifications for the Service
16) Payments	Payment shall be made after satisfactory performance, in accordance with all provisions thereof, and upon receipt of a properly completed invoice.	provided by Spectrum. Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement"). Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP



Should it become necessary or proper during the term of this Contract to make any change in design or any alterations that will increase price, Region 4 ESC must be notified immediately. Price increases must be approved by Region 4 ESC and no payment for additional materials or services, beyond the amount stipulated in the Contract shall be paid without prior approval. All price increases must be supported by manufacturer documentation, or a formal cost justification letter. Contractor must honor previous prices for thirty (30) days after approval and written notification from Region 4 ESC. It is the Contractor's responsibility to keep all pricing up to date and on file with Region 4 ESC. All price changes must be provided to Region 4 ESC, using the same format as was provided and accepted in the Contractor's proposal. Price reductions may be offered at any time during Contract. Special, time-limited reductions are permissible under the following conditions: 1) reduction is available to all users equally; 2) reduction is for a specific period, normally not less than thirty (30) days; and 3) original price is not exceeded after the time-limit. Contractor shall offer Region 4 ESC any published price reduction during the Contract term.

17) Price Adjustments

Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.co m/legal/se-terms-andconditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").

Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP



18) Audit Rights.

Contractor shall, at its sole expense, maintain appropriate due diligence of all purchases made by Region 4 ESC and any entity that utilizes this Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to audit the accounting for a period of three (3) years from the time such purchases are made. This audit right shall survive termination of this Agreement for a period of one (1) year from the effective date of termination. Region 4 ESC shall have the authority to conduct random audits of Contractor's pricing at Region 4 ESC's sole cost and expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that Region 4 ESC is made aware of any pricing being offered that is materially inconsistent with the pricing under this agreement, Region 4 ESC shall have the ability to conduct an extensive audit of Contractor's pricing at Contractor's sole cost and expense. Region 4 ESC may conduct the audit internally or may engage a third-party auditing firm. In the event of an audit, the requested materials shall be provided in the format and at the location designated by Region 4 ESC.

Contractor shall, at its sole expense, maintain appropriate due diligence of all purchases made by Region 4 ESC and any entity that utilizes this Contract. Region 4 ESC reserves the right to audit the accounting for a period of six (6) months from the time such purchases are made. This audit right shall survive termination of this Agreement for a period of SIX (6) MONTHS from the effective date of termination. Region 4 ESC shall have the authority to conduct random audits of Contractor's pricing at Region 4 ESC's sole cost and expense. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that Region 4 ESC is made aware of any pricing being offered that is materially inconsistent with the pricing under this agreement, Region 4 ESC shall have the ability to conduct an extensive audit of Contractor's pricing. Region 4 ESC may conduct the audit internally. In the event of an audit, the requested materials shall be provided.



A		Spectrum's solution is
)		1 '
		provisioned as a Spectrum
		owned and operated service.
		As between Spectrum and its
		customers, Spectrum retains
		ownership of all Spectrum-
		provided equipment, unless
		otherwise agreed upon
		between the parties. Since the
		Service Agreement with
	All supplies, equipment and	Spectrum is for the provision of
	services shall include	Services, provisions of the
22) Warranty	manufacturer's minimum standard	RFP related to the sale of
Conditions.	warranty and one (1) year labor	goods or personal service
	warranty unless otherwise agreed	contracts are not applicable to
	to in writing.	the agreement. Such
		provisions include, without
		limitation, provisions related to
		conveyance of title, warranty of
		title, reseller authorizations,
		manufacturer's warranties,
		assumption of liabilities, risk of
		loss, delivery, packaging,
		shipment, inspection of goods
)		or materials, and any other
		related provisions.



Installation shall be subject to

section 5 (SERVICE LOCATION ACCESS AND INSTALLATION) of Spectrum's commercial terms: (e) Spectrum shall be responsible for reasonable restoration efforts necessary to address any displacement resulting from excavation and for those damages directly caused by Spectrum's faulty workmanship or installation of the Service, provided that the boring of holes or insertion of fasteners through the surface of walls for attachment of peripheral Contractor shall clean up and equipment will not be deemed remove all debris and rubbish damages but rather part of resulting from their work as normal workmanship. If the required or directed. Upon installation and maintenance of 23) Site Cleanup. completion of the work, the Services at the Service premises shall be left in good Locations is or becomes, in repair and an orderly, neat, Spectrum's sole opinion, clean, safe and unobstructed hazardous or dangerous to condition. Spectrum's employees or Network, the public, or property, including without limitation due to the presence of asbestos or other hazardous materials, Spectrum may refuse to install and maintain such Service or stop providing Services until such time as the condition is remedied or an alternative Service Location is designated that is not hazardous or dangerous. Customer shall bear any additional costs incurred by Spectrum arising from any such hazardous or dangerous conditions.



Contractor shall not begin a project for which the site has not been prepared, unless Contractor does the preparation work at no cost, or until Region 4 ESC includes the cost of site preparation in a purchase order. Site preparation includes, but is not limited to: moving furniture, installing wiring for networks or power, and similar pre-installation requirements.

Installation shall be subject to section 5 (SERVICE LOCATION ACCESS AND INSTALLATION) of Spectrum's commercial terms: (c) Site Preparation. Customer shall be responsible for necessary preparations at the Service Location(s) for delivery and installation of Spectrum Equipment and the installation and ongoing provision of Services, including the relocation of Customer's equipment, furniture, and furnishings as necessary to access the Spectrum Equipment or Services. In addition. Customer shall provide Spectrum with floor space, rack space, other space, inside wiring, and clean power all as is reasonably necessary for the installation. operation, and delivery of Spectrum Equipment and Services at the Service Location(s). Customer shall not charge Spectrum, and shall ensure that Spectrum does not incur, any fees or expenses whatsoever in connection with Customer's provision of space, power, inside wiring, or access as described herein, or otherwise in connection with Customer's performance of its obligations pursuant to this section; and any such fees or expenses charged by any other end user accessing or using the Services ("End User") shall be borne solely by Customer. Any failure or refusal by Customer to be ready to receive Services does not release Customer from its obligation to pay Service Charges for any Services that

24) Site Preparation.



)		would otherwise be available for Customer's use.	
)			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Contractor shall take all		
	reasonable precautions for the	Contractor shall take all	
	safety of employees on the worksite and shall erect and	reasonable precautions for the	
	properly maintain all necessary	safety of employees on the worksite and shall erect and	
	safeguards for protection of workers and the public.	properly maintain all necessary	
9) Safety easures.	Contractor shall post warning signs against all hazards created	safeguards for protection of workers and the public. Proper	
	by its operation and work in	precautions shall be taken	
	progress. Proper precautions shall be taken pursuant to state	pursuant to state law and standard practices to protect	
	law and standard practices to	workers, general public and existing structures from injury	
	protect workers, general public and existing structures from	or damage.	
)	injury or damage.		

including lease, of real or personal property is a commitment of Region 4 ESC's current revenue only. Region 4 ESC retains the right to terminate the Contract at the expiration of each budget period during the term of the Contract and is conditioned on a best effort attempt by Region 4 ESC to

A Contract for the acquisition,

obtain appropriate funds for

payment of the contract.

Spectrum's Service Agreement includes the following clause related to termination: 13. DEFAULT, SUSPENSION OF SERVICE, AND TERMINATION.

- (a) Default. A Party shall be in default under this Service Agreement if it has failed to comply with the terms of this Service Agreement or any Service Orders, including without limitation the obligation to pay any amounts due, and such Party fails to correct each such noncompliance within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from the non-defaulting Party describing in reasonable detail the default or noncompliance ("Default").
- (b) Mutual Termination Rights. Either Party may terminate this Service Agreement or a Service Order if: (i) the other Party is in Default; or (ii) the other Party liquidates, is adjudicated as bankrupt, makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, invokes any provision of law for general relief from its debts, initiates any proceeding seeking general protection from its creditors, or is removed or delisted from a trading exchange.
- (c) Termination for Convenience by Customer. Notwithstanding any other term or provision in this Service Agreement, Customer may terminate a Service Order, or this Service Agreement, at any time upon thirty (30) days prior notice to Spectrum, subject to payment of all outstanding amounts due, payment of any

9) Funding Out راً ause.



applicable Termination
Charges (as defined below),
and the return of any Spectrum
Equipment.

(d) Spectrum's Right to Suspend. Spectrum shall have the right, at its option, without prior notice, and in addition to any other rights of Spectrum expressly set forth in this Service Agreement and any other remedies it may have under applicable law to suspend Services if Customer fails to comply with any applicable laws or regulations or this Service Agreement, or if Customer or its End Users' use of the Service is determined by Spectrum, in its sole discretion, to result in a material degradation of the Spectrum Network until Customer remedies any such noncompliance or degradation. Any suspension shall not affect Customer's on-going obligation to pay Spectrum any amounts due under this Service Agreement. If Spectrum suspends any Service, Spectrum may require the payment of reconnect or other charges before restarting the suspended Service.



(e) Termination Charges. Upon Termination, Customer must pay all Services Charges then due for Services provided through the effective date of Termination. In addition, if Termination is due to Customer Default or for Customer's convenience, Customer must pay Spectrum a termination charge (a "Termination Charge"), which the Parties recognize as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. This Termination Charge shall be equal to 100% of the unpaid balance of all Service Charges that would have been due throughout the applicable Order Term, including, without limitation, the outstanding balance of any and all unpaid OTCs. The foregoing terms will also apply to any partial Termination impacting one or more Service Orders, but not the entire Service Agreement. (f) Survival. The provisions of sections 6(c), 7(b), 7(e), 13(e), 13(f), 14, 15, 18-22 and the Attachments shall survive the termination or expiration of the Service Agreement.



30) Indemnity.

Contractor shall protect, indemnify, and hold harmless both Region 4 ESC and its administrators, employees and agents against all claims, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or resulting from the actions of the Contractor. Contractor employees or subcontractors in the preparation of the solicitation and the later execution of the Contract. Any litigation involving either Region 4 ESC, its administrators and employees and agents will be in Harris County, Texas.

Spectrum's Service Agreement includes the following clause: INDEMNIFICATION. Unless prohibited under applicable law, Customer at its own expense, shall indemnify. defend, and hold harmless Spectrum, its affiliates, service providers, and suppliers, and their directors, employees. representatives, officers and agents (the "Indemnified Parties") against any and all third party claims, liabilities. lawsuits, damages, losses, judgments, costs, fees and expenses incurred by Indemnified Parties, including reasonable attorney and other professional fees and court costs incurred by Indemnified Parties, to the full extent that such arise from or relate to any one or more of the following:(a) Customer's use or misuse of the Service, (b) Customer's failure to comply with any applicable law, order. rule, regulation or ordinance or this Service Agreement, (c) Personal injury or tangible property damage caused by Customer's or its employees' or agents' negligence or willful misconduct. Indemnified Parties shall have the right but not the obligation to participate in the defense of the claim.



31) Marketing.	Contractor agrees to allow Region 4 ESC to use their name and logo within website, marketing materials and advertisement. Any use of Region 4 ESC name and logo or any form of publicity, inclusive of press releases, regarding this Contract by Contractor must have prior approval from Region 4 ESC.	Any use of either parties name and logo or any form of publicity, inclusive of press releases, regarding this Contract must have prior approval from the other party.
Appendix B		
Terms & Conditions Acceptance Form	Signature on the Offer and Contract Signature form certifies complete acceptance of the terms and conditions in this solicitation and draft Contract except as noted below with proposed substitute language (additional pages may be attached, if necessary). The provisions of the RFP cannot be modified without the express written approval of Region 4 ESC. If a proposal is returned with modifications to the draft Contract provisions that are not expressly approved in writing by Region 4 ESC, the Contract provisions contained in the RFP shall prevail.	Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").



1				
(Spectrum remains open to	
Ĩ			negotiating the Agreement, and	
			once a mutually negotiated	
			contract is entered into by the	
			parties, it shall supersede and	
			replace any terms and	
Į			conditions of the RFP	
			Spectrum's bid is based upon	
			services being delivered under	
			the terms of the Spectrum	
			Enterprise Service Agreement	
			which incorporates the	
			Spectrum Enterprise	
			Commercial Terms of Service	
			(available at	
			https://enterprise.spectrum.co	
			m/legal/se-terms-and-	
	Evhibit A Basses		conditions.html or any	
	Exhibit A Response for Cooperative		successor URL), plus any	
	•		related attachments, Service	
	Contract		Level Agreements and	
			applicable Service Order(s)	
			(collectively, the "Agreement").	
0				
-			Spectrum remains open to	
			negotiating the Agreement, and	
			once a mutually negotiated	
			contract is entered into by the	
			parties, it shall supersede and	
			replace any terms and	
			conditions of the RFP	
			Supplier commits the not-to-	
		Supplier committee the net to	exceed pricing provided under	
		Supplier commits the not-to-	the Master Agreement pricing	
		exceed pricing provided under	is its lowest available (net to	
		the Master Agreement pricing is its lowest available (net to buyer)	buyer) to Public Agencies and	
		to Public Agencies and further	further commits that if a	
		commits that if a Participating	Participating Public Agency is	
	2.2 Drining	Public Agency is eligible for	eligible for lower pricing	
	2.2 Pricing Commitment	lower pricing through a national,	through a national, state,	
			regional or local or cooperative	
		state, regional or local or	contract, the Supplier will	
		cooperative contract, the	match such lower pricing to	
		Supplier will match such lower	that Participating Public	
		pricing to that Participating	Agency under the Master	
1.00		Public Agency under the Master	Agreement provided that the	
(Agreement.	Participating Public Agency	
1			meets any volume or	
		·	<u> </u>	



	contractual commitments as defined in the other national, state, regional or local or cooperative contract required to receive the lower price.
	Spectrum's bid is based upon
Exhibit B Administration Agreement	services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.co m/legal/se-terms-and- conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").
	Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP
Exhibit C MASTER INTERGOVERNMENT AL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT	Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any



	successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").
	Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP
Exhibit F FEDERAL FUNDS CERTIFICATIONS	Spectrum's bid is based upon services being delivered under the terms of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement which incorporates the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service (available at https://enterprise.spectrum.com/legal/se-terms-and-conditions.html or any successor URL), plus any related attachments, Service Level Agreements and applicable Service Order(s) (collectively, the "Agreement").
	Spectrum remains open to negotiating the Agreement, and once a mutually negotiated contract is entered into by the parties, it shall supersede and replace any terms and conditions of the RFP



SPECTRUM SERVICE PROPOSAL

These prices will remain in effect throughout the Initial Order Term, subject to the following contingencies:

- final engineering, design and site visits; and
- acceptance of and entering into the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement (as may be negotiated by the parties as stated in the Terms of Offer section above), which shall govern the contractual relationship between the parties and the provision of the services under such contract.

Investment for Spectrum Services

Service*	Products	Speed	MRC**	NRC**
Stay Connected K-12 – Spectrum Internet	HSD	50M	\$29.99	\$0.00
Stay Connected K-12 – WiFi Service	HSD - WiFi		\$0.00	\$0.00

*Once 1000 units have been connected and maintained, Spectrum will offer an optional volume price of \$24.99 for the service.

Pricing is provided only for the sites shown in the Service Proposal. Pricing for additional sites shall be determined upon Spectrum's receipt of site information for the new service location, evaluation of the requested services, performance of surveys, and other information that may be required.

Pricing shown above is exclusive of taxes, fees and surcharges. MRCs and OTCs are subject to taxes, fees and surcharges as described in Section 7(b) (Taxes, Surcharges and Fees) of the Spectrum Enterprise Service Agreement.

^{**}Per location

Stay Connected K-12



Keeping students and staff connected at home is essential

Access to technology has always played a key role in creating a viable K-12 learning environment. With the expansion of remote learning and working, the need to connect students, educators and staff to school systems and services when they are off-campus has become essential. Providing at-home connectivity addresses this need. However, end users can change over time, and managing devices, activation and technical support can be challenging and very costly for K-12 schools and districts.

Stay Connected K-12 allows schools to offer high-speed, cable broadband Internet access direct to students, educators and staff in their homes so learning, teaching and working are uninterrupted. It offers schools and districts flexibility to add locations where access is needed and remove locations when it is no longer required. Schools and districts can simply provide the details of residences in need of access and Spectrum Enterprise takes care of the rest.

Product highlights

- Turnkey program: A complete solution that includes a broadband connection, equipment and technical support for end users
- Fast download speeds: Broadband Internet access with speeds that can easily support multiple devices and applications such as video collaboration
- Broad reach: Fast and reliable network with 52 million homes passed in 41 states
- WiFi included: Connect with multiple devices over the in-home WiFi

Key features

- Internet download speeds up to 50 Mbps¹
- Unlimited Internet usage with no data caps or speed throttling
- Cable modem, WiFi and self-installation kit provided with every end-user connection
- Optional professional installation available¹
- Wireline connectivity with over 99.9% network reliability²
- 24/7/365 technical support

¹Not all products, pricing and services are available in all areas. Speed based on wired connection. Pricing and actual speeds may vary. Restrictions may apply. Subject to change without notice.

²99.9% network reliability based on average HFC Availability, January 2019 - May 2019.

Learn more

enterprise.spectrum.com

About Spectrum Enterprise

Spectrum Enterprise, a part of Charter Communications, Inc., is a national provider of scalable, fiber technology solutions serving America's largest businesses and communications service providers. The broad Spectrum Enterprise portfolio includes networking and managed services solutions: Internet access, Ethernet access and networks, Voice and TV solutions. Spectrum Enterprise's industry-leading team of experts works closely with clients to achieve greater business success by providing solutions designed to meet their evolving needs. More information about spectrum Enterprise can be found at enterprise spectrum.com

s 2020 Charter Communications. All Rights Reserved.

enterprise.spectrum.com

SE-NSED-PB001





REFERENCES

Customer Name	Buffalo Public Schools	
Point of Contact	ntact Myre Bruden CTO	
Phone Number	716-816-7112	
Email Address	myburden@buffaloschools.org	
Customer Name	State of CT	
Point of Contact	Doug Casey	
Phone Number	(860) 622-2224	
Email Address	doug.casey@ct.gov	
Customer Name	Walla Walla School	
Point of Contact	Dee Dee Delaney	
Phone Number	(509) 526-6720	
Email Address	ddelaney@wwps.org	
Customer Name	Lincoln County School District	
Point of Contact	Chris Jones	
Phone Number	(704) 732-2261	
Email Address	chris@lincoln.k12.nc.us	
Customer Name	Tillamook SD	
Point of Contact	Jennifer Guarcello	
Phone Number	(503) 842-4414	
Email Address	guarcelloj@tillamook.k12.or.us	
Customer Name	City of Grand Junction	
Point of Contact	Scott Hockins	
Phone Number	970-244-1540	
Email Address	scotth@gicity.org	
Customer Name	Delano Union School District	
Point of Contact	Jahad Suboh	
Phone Number	661-721-5000 ext 00129	
Email Address	jsuboh@duesd.org	



APPENDIX C

ADDITIONAL REQUIRED DOCUMENTS

DOC #1 Acknowledgment and Acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy

DOC #2 Antitrust Certification Statements (Tex. Government Code § 2155.005)

DOC #3 Implementation of House Bill 1295 Certificate of Interested Parties (Form 1295)

DOC #4 Texas Government Code 2270 Verification Form

ACKNOWLEDGMENT AND ACCEPTANCE OF REGION 4 ESC'S OPEN RECORDS POLICY

OPEN RECORDS POLICY

All proposals, information and documents submitted are subject to the Public Information Act requirements governed by the State of Texas once a Contract(s) is executed. If an Offeror believes its response, or parts of its response, may be exempted from disclosure, the Offeror must specify page-by-page and line-by-line the parts of the response, which it believes, are exempt and include detailed reasons to substantiate the exemption. Price is not confidential and will not be withheld. Any unmarked information will be considered public information and released, if requested under the Public Information Act.

The determination of whether information is confidential and not subject to disclosure is the duty of the Office of Attorney General (OAG). Region 4 ESC must provide the OAG sufficient information to render an opinion and therefore, vague and general claims to confidentiality by the Offeror are not acceptable. Region 4 ESC must comply with the opinions of the OAG. Region 4 ESC assumes no responsibility for asserting legal arguments on behalf of any Offeror. Offeror is advised to consult with their legal counsel concerning disclosure issues resulting from this procurement process and to take precautions to safeguard trade secrets and other proprietary information.

Signature below certifies complete acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy, except as noted below (additional pages may be attached, if necessary).

Check one of the following responses to the Acknowledgment and Acceptance of Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy below:

- We acknowledge Region 4 ESC's Open Records Policy and declare that no information submitted with this proposal, or any part of our proposal, is exempt from disclosure under the Public Information Act.
- We declare the following information to be a trade secret or proprietary and exempt from disclosure under the Public Information Act.

(Note: Offeror must specify page-by-page and line-by-line the parts of the response, which it believes, are exempt. In addition, Offeror must include detailed reasons to substantiate the exemption(s). Price is not confident and will not be withheld. All information believed to be a trade secret or proprietary must be listed. It is further understood that failure to identify such information, in strict accordance with the instructions, will result in that information being considered public information and released, if requested under the Public Information Act.)

May 17, 2021

Date

Lynne P. Bell (May 17, 2021 12:02 PDT)

Authorized Signature & Title

/nne P. Bell

E-signed 2021-05-17 12:02PM PDT

lynne.bell@charter.com



Appendix C, Doc #2

ANTITRUST CERTIFICATION STATEMENTS (Tex. Government Code § 2155.005)

Attorney General Form

I affirm under penalty of perjury of the laws of the State of Texas that:

- 1. I am duly authorized to execute this Contract on my own behalf or on behalf of the company, corporation, firm, partnership or individual (Company) listed below;
- 2. In connection with this proposal, neither I nor any representative of the Company has violated any provision of the Texas Free Enterprise and Antitrust Act, Tex. Bus. & Comm. Code Chapter 15:
- 3. In connection with this proposal, neither I nor any representative of the Company has violated any federal antitrust law; and
- 4. Neither I nor any representative of the Company has directly or indirectly communicated any of the contents of this proposal to a competitor of the Company or any other company, corporation, firm, partnership or individual engaged in the same line of business as the Company.

Company	Contact	Lynne P. Bell
Charter Communications Ope	erating, LLC	Signature
-		Printed Name VP
Address 12405 Powerscourt, St Louis	s, MO 63131	Position with Company
	Official Authorizing Proposal	ı
		Signature
		Printed Name
Phone (512) 531-3264		Position with Company
Fax		

Appendix C, DOC # 4

Texas Government Code 2270 Verification Form

House Bill 89 (85R Legislative Session), which adds Chapter 2270 to the Texas Government Code, provides that a governmental entity may not enter into a contract with a company without verification that the contracting vendor does not and will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract.

Furthermore, Senate Bill 252 (85R Legislative Session), which amends Chapter 2252 of the Texas Government Code to add Subchapter F, prohibits contracting with a company engaged in business with Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization identified on a list prepared by the Texas Comptroller.

j, Lyn	ne Bell,	as	an	authorized
represent	ative of			
Charter	Communications Operating, LLC		а	contractor
engaged	Oy Charter Communications Operating, LLC Insert Name of Company			

Region 4 Education Service Center, 7145 West Tidwell Road, Houston, TX 77092, verify by this writing that the above-named company affirms that it (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of this contract, or any contract with the above-named Texas governmental entity in the future.

Also, our company is not listed on and we do not do business with companies that are on the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts list of Designated Foreign Terrorists Organizations found at https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/docs/foreign-terrorist.pdf.

I further affirm that if our company's position on this issue is reversed and this affirmation is no longer valid, that the above-named Texas governmental entity will be notified in writing within one (1) business day and we understand that our company's failure to affirm and comply with the requirements of Texas Government Code 2270 et seq. shall be grounds for immediate contract termination without penalty to the above-named Texas governmental entity.

I swear and affirm that the above is true and correct.

Lynne P. Bell

Signature of Named Authorized Company Representative

May 17, 2021

Date

∕nne P. Bell

E-signed 2021-05-17 12:02PM PDT lynne.bell@charter.com

Document Integrity Verified



STAY CONNECTED K-12 INTERNET SERVICE ADDENDUM TO SPECTRUM ENTERPRISE SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Stay Connected K-12 Internet Service Addendum (the "Addendum") is entered into by and between ("Customer") and Charter Communications Operating, LLC on behalf of those operating subsidiaries providing the Service(s) ("Spectrum") and is governed by and subject to the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service posted to the Spectrum Enterprise website, https://enterprise.spectrum.com/ (or successor url) or, if applicable, an existing services agreement mutually executed by the parties (each, as appropriate, a "Service Agreement"). This Addendum shall be effective as of the Spectrum signature date below (the "Addendum Effective Date"). Spectrum and Customer may each be referred to as a "Party" or collectively as the "Parties." In the event of any conflict between the terms of the Service Agreement and those of this Addendum, the terms of this Addendum shall control. Unless otherwise specified herein, all capitalized terms shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Service Agreement.

DUE TO THE PANDEMIC CAUSED BY THE CORONAVIRUS (COVID 19), THE PARTIES HAVE AGREED TO ENTER INTO THIS ADDENDUM TO THE SERVICE AGREEMENT IN ORDER TO PROVIDE "INTERNET SERVICE" (AS DEFINED BELOW) ON AN URGENT BASIS TO CUSTOMER'S DESIGNATED END USERS. CUSTOMER SHALL NOT SUBMIT THIS ADDENDUM OR ANY SERVICE ORDER PLACED HEREUNDER TO THE SCHOOLS AND LIBRARIES (E-RATE) DIVISION OF THE UNIVERSAL SERVICE ADMINISTRATIVE COMPANY (USAC), OR ANY OTHER ENTITY APPOINTED BY THE FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION (FCC) TO ADMINISTER THE USAC PROGRAM WITH RESPECT TO E-RATE FUNDING OR UNDER SUCH USAC PROGRAMS, PROVIDED, HOWEVER, THAT IF THE FCC SUBSEQUENTLY AUTHORIZES E-RATE FUNDING FOR THE INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDED UNDER THIS ADDENDUM, SPECTRUM SHALL WORK TOGETHER WITH CUSTOMER TO DEVELOP AND EXECUTE A FURTHER ADDENDUM PERMITTING CUSTOMER TO APPLY FOR E-RATE FUNDING TO THE FULL EXTENT AUTHORIZED BY LAW.

1. Spectrum Internet Access Service.

- a. Customer requests that Spectrum provide a residential high-speed Internet access service, including Wi-Fi ("Internet Service"), to qualified individuals who are eligible to receive the Internet Service ("End Users"). End Users will be instructed to request Internet Service through Customer and will not be permitted to order Internet Service directly through Spectrum.
- b. Spectrum will provide Internet Service to End Users at serviceable residential addresses (as determined by Spectrum) within a Spectrum service area. All such "Service Locations" will be identified in the initial or subsequent Service Order(s) placed pursuant to this Addendum, or modified pursuant to a move, add, disconnect process as required by Spectrum. Customer may add new Service Locations on a weekly basis. The Stay Connected K-12 program is not intended for use by Customer at school sites, district offices, or other Customer-controlled locations. Internet Service may not be available in all areas and all submitted Service Orders are subject to approval and acceptance by Spectrum. Upon Spectrum's acceptance of a Service Order, as indicated either by: (i) Spectrum's written acceptance, or (ii) Spectrum's delivery of the Internet Service, such Service Order shall be deemed incorporated into the Service Agreement. If during installation review or attempted installation, Spectrum determines that construction is required to deliver the Internet Service to a Service Location, Spectrum reserves the right to notify Customer that Spectrum is unable to provide Internet Service to such Service Location.
- c. Spectrum may, in its discretion, modify the Internet Service offered to Customer and End Users or otherwise delete, add, or change any or all of the functionality or features included or available through use of the Internet Service. Some features and functionality of the Internet Service may not be compatible with all End User equipment and software or otherwise available to all End Users.
- d. If End User requests a different Internet service offering or speed tier, Spectrum will notify End User that no changes are permitted to the Internet Service offered through the Stay Connected K-12program. If requested by End User, Spectrum may provide additional services to End User such as video, voice or Internet services under a separate agreement directly between End User and Spectrum. Only an authorized representative of Customer may request move, add, or disconnects and any requests from End Users to make such changes shall be directed to Customer.

Spectrum»

2. Pricing; Service Fees; Additional Remedies for Payment Default.

- a. Customer shall pay the monthly recurring and non-recurring charges set forth in a Service Order ("Service Charges"), plus applicable taxes, fees, and surcharges. Spectrum will invoice Customer as set forth in the Service Agreement. Spectrum will not assess an installation charge for: (i) self-installation Service Locations, (ii) Service Locations that require technical installation because such Service Location has never received any Spectrum services, or (iii) if requested by Customer to accommodate accessibility considerations. If the foregoing conditions are not met and Customer requests a technician installation, then Spectrum will invoice Customer for the installation charge set forth in the Service Order.
- b. Customer shall order a minimum of 50 new Service Locations to start billing within 1 year from the Addendum Effective Date. For self-installation orders, Spectrum will begin billing Customer from the earlier of (i) when Internet Service is activated by End User, and (ii) approximately 8 calendar days after initial shipment of self-installation kits to Service Locations; and for orders that require technician installation, Spectrum will begin billing Customer the day of installation (in each case the "Service Order Commencement Date"). Spectrum will issue one bill to Customer each month based on the number of Service Locations at any time during such month. Spectrum will not pro-rate billing for partial months of service based on addition or deletion of Service Locations.
- c. Customer's failure to pay the Service Charges in full by the balance due date of the month shall be a material breach of this Addendum, and Spectrum shall, in addition to any other remedies available to it, have the right at its sole option to (i) immediately suspend the Internet Service to End Users, in whole or in part; and/or (ii) terminate this Addendum upon thirty (30) days notice, in which event Customer shall be liable for the "Termination Charge" (as defined below).

3. Term; Termination.

- a. This Addendum begins as of the Addendum Effective Date and shall remain in effect so long as Customer continues to purchase Internet Service, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the Service Agreement (the "Term"). The "Initial Order Term" shall be as specified in the Service Order starting on the Service Order Commencement Date. Thereafter, the Order Term shall continue on a month-to-month basis. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, whether during the Initial Order Term or during any month-to-month term, either Spectrum or Customer may elect to not renew the Internet Service by written notice provided to the other at least sixty (60) days in advance of the expiration of the then-current Order Term.
- b. <u>Termination Charges</u>. If a Service Order is terminated, in whole or in part, for any reason other than Spectrum's default, Customer must pay all Services Charges then due for Services provided through the effective date of Termination. In addition, Customer must pay Spectrum a termination charge (a "<u>Termination Charge</u>"), which the Parties recognize as liquidated damages and not as a penalty. This Termination Charge shall be equal to 100% of the unpaid balance of all Service Charges that would have been due throughout the applicable Order Term, including, without limitation, the outstanding balance of any and all unpaid installation charges.
- 4. End User Information. Customer acknowledges and agrees that in order for Spectrum to provide the Internet Service, Customer must provide a limited amount of End User and Service Location data concerning an adult End User, parent or adult legal guardian of an applicable End User, such as contact name, Service Location address, email address (if available), and telephone number (if available), collectively "Limited Directory Information") in order to enable Spectrum to install the Internet Service and communicate with End Users in connection with the Internet Service. Customer represents and warrants to Spectrum that: (a) it has provided only the minimum necessary Limited Directory Information (b) Customer's disclosure of such Limited Directory Information complies with all applicable laws and regulations, including without limitation The Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99); and (c) Spectrum's receipt of and/or access to and use of Limited Directory Information does not and will not violate any right of privacy, personal or proprietary right, or other common law or statutory right of any third party. Customer further acknowledges that Spectrum: (i) communicates with End Users that voluntarily contact Spectrum regarding the Internet Service and other services that Spectrum offers in the service area, and (ii) sends general marketing and advertising communications to all households within Spectrum's

Spectrum»

service area, which may include End User households, as a result of independent marketing activities that are unrelated to any Limited Directory Information provided to Spectrum by Customer.

- 5. End User Terms. Spectrum will present End Users with the applicable terms of service for the Internet Service. End Users, on behalf of every member of its household, current and future, and every visitor to or guest in its household, and any other person who uses the Internet Service (together with End User, the "End User Group"), will be bound by the terms of service applicable to the Internet Service, the Spectrum Subscriber Privacy Notice, and Acceptable Use Policy, which may each be found at www.spectrum.com, under "Terms of Service/Policies" and "Your Privacy Rights," as such may be updated from time to time (collectively, the "Terms of Service"). End User's acceptance of the work order presented upon installation of the Internet Service, and/or any other form of signature or action indicating intention to use (e.g., online acceptance, e-signature or breaking the seal on the box of a self-installation kit, or activation of service) are evidence of End User Group's agreement to the Terms of Service. Spectrum may change the Internet Service and/or the Terms of Service. The End User Group's continued use of the Internet Service after notice of the change shall be considered the End User's acknowledgement and acceptance of the changes, and the most-recent version of these Terms of Service controls End User's relationship with Spectrum and Spectrum's provision of Internet Service to End User. End User may not modify the Terms of Service by making any typed, handwritten, or any other changes to it for any purpose. Customer acknowledges that Spectrum may suspend or terminate Internet Service to any End User that does not comply with the Terms of Service.
- 6. <u>Internet Service Installation</u>. Solely with respect to installation of Internet Service pursuant to this Addendum, the following provisions will replace Section 5 of the Spectrum Enterprise Commercial Terms of Service or any applicable installation terms under a mutually negotiated service agreement. Spectrum will deliver a self-installation kit, with the required modem and router equipment ("<u>Equipment</u>") and instructions, directly to the End User at such End User's Service Location to enable activation and use of the Internet Service. If self-installation is not available for the Service Location because the Service Location has never received any Spectrum service, End User requires accessibility accommodations, or if Customer requests a technician installation, then Spectrum will provide technician installation on the terms set forth below:
 - a. <u>Access</u>. Customer will obtain from each End User consent for Spectrum to access the Service Location to install the Internet Service prior to delivery of any End User location(s) to Spectrum. If an End User does not consent to permit Spectrum to access the Service Location, or if an adult is not present at all times when Spectrum attempts to and is installing the Internet Service, then Spectrum may decline Customer's request for Internet Service with respect to such Service Location, without any liability to Customer.
 - b. <u>Installation</u>. If Spectrum is unable to install the Internet Service as a result of End User's failure to provide access to a Service Location or if there is no adult present, then Customer shall pay Spectrum a Service Charge at Spectrum's then prevailing rates for any installation trip made by Spectrum and an additional Service Charge for each subsequent trip necessary to perform the Internet Service installation.
 - c. Spectrum shall be responsible for reasonable restoration efforts necessary to address any displacement resulting from excavation and for those damages directly caused by Spectrum's faulty workmanship or installation of the Internet Service, provided that the boring of holes or insertion of fasteners through the surface of walls for attachment of peripheral equipment will not be deemed damages but rather part of normal workmanship. If installation and maintenance of Internet Service at a Service Location is or becomes, in Spectrum's sole opinion, hazardous or dangerous to Spectrum's employees or property or the public, including without limitation due to the presence of asbestos or other hazardous materials, Spectrum may refuse to install and maintain such Internet Service or stop providing Internet Service until such time as the condition is remedied or an alternative Service Location is designated that is not hazardous or dangerous.
- 7. Equipment. Customer acknowledges and agrees that only Spectrum-provided Equipment will be used in connection with the Internet Service and End Users cannot use their own modems and routers. Additional information regarding use and support of any equipment or software is available at www.spectrum.net/support. Spectrum is not responsible for compatibility, repairs, or trouble issues related to third party or End User-supplied hardware, software, or other equipment. Spectrum's End User Terms of Service require that End Users return the Spectrum-provided Equipment to Spectrum if and when Internet Service is terminated. If an End User either returns damaged



Equipment or does not return the Equipment, Customer is responsible to pay assessed fees for any lost, damaged, or unreturned Equipment.

- 8. <u>Support</u>. Spectrum shall provide Customer with contact information for inquiries and remote problem support for the Internet Service. Customer or Spectrum may provide Spectrum's support contact information to its End Users and both Customer and End User may contact Spectrum directly. End Users are responsible for the installation, repair, use, and support of any third party equipment, software, or services.
- 9. <u>No Resale</u>. Customer shall not, and shall further ensure that its End Users do not, re-sell or re-distribute (whether for a fee or otherwise) access to the Internet Service, in any manner without the express prior consent of Spectrum, including without limitation, any use to provide services for the benefit of, or on behalf of, any third party.
- 10. <u>Acceptable Use</u>. End Users will be responsible for all use (whether or not authorized) of the Internet Service and any charges incurred through use of the Internet Service. If necessary, Customer shall cooperate with Spectrum to support enforcement of the Terms of Service with regard to End Users' use or misuse of the Internet Service.
- 11. Confidentiality. Customer agrees to maintain in confidence, and not to disclose to third parties or use, except for such use as is expressly permitted herein, the contents of this Addendum and any exhibits, attachments, and Service Orders. Customer may not issue a press release, public announcement, or other public statements regarding this Addendum without Spectrum's prior written consent.
- 12. <u>Indemnification</u>. In addition to its indemnification obligations set forth in the Service Agreement, and unless prohibited under applicable law, Customer, at its own expense, shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Spectrum, its affiliates, service providers, and suppliers, and their directors, employees, representatives, officers and agents (the "<u>Indemnified Parties</u>") against any and all third party claims, liabilities, lawsuits, damages, losses, judgments, costs, fees and expenses incurred by Indemnified Parties, including reasonable attorney and other professional fees and court costs incurred by Indemnified Parties, to the full extent that such arise from or relate to any one or more of the following:
 - a. Customer's breach of its representations, warranties, or covenants in Sections 4 and 11 of this Addendum (End User Information, Confidentiality);
 - b. End Users' use or misuse of the Internet Service;
 - Claims brought by or on behalf of End Users with respect to Internet Service provided to End Users pursuant to this Addendum;
 - d. Personal injury or tangible property damage caused by End Users' negligence or willful misconduct.

Spectrum Indemnified Parties shall have the right but not the obligation to participate in the defense of the claim.

13. No Third Party Beneficiaries. The terms of this Addendum and the Parties' respective performance of obligations as described are not intended to benefit any person or entity not a Party to this Addendum, and the consideration provided by each Party hereunder only runs to the respective Parties, and that no person or entity not a Party to this Addendum shall have any rights hereunder nor the right to require performance of obligations by either of the Parties. For avoidance of doubt, End Users are not a party to this Addendum.

[Signature Page Follows]

Spectrum

BY EXECUTING THIS ADDENDUM BELOW, CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT: (1) CUSTOMER ACCEPTS AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THE ADDENDUM AND THE SERVICE AGREEMENT, INCLUDING THE ARBITRATION SECTION THEREOF, WHICH PROVIDES THAT THE PARTIES DESIRE TO RESOLVE ANY CONTROVERSY OR CLAIM ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE SERVICE AGREEMENT THROUGH ARBITRATION; AND (2) BY AGREEING TO ARBITRATION, CUSTOMER IS GIVING UP VARIOUS RIGHTS, INCLUDING THE RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.

CUSTOMER
Ву:
Printed Name:
Title:
Date:

14992500_v10

Appendix D



REQUIREMENTS FOR COOPERATIVE CONTRACT TO BE ADMINISTERED BY OMNIA PARTNERS

The following documents are used in evaluating and administering cooperative contracts and are included for Supplier's review and response.

Exhibit A – RESPONSE FOR COOPERATIVE CONTRACT

Exhibit B – ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE

 $\label{eq:cooperative} \textbf{Exhibit} \ \textbf{C} - \textbf{MASTER} \ \textbf{INTERGOVERNMENTAL} \ \textbf{COOPERATIVE} \ \textbf{PURCHASING} \\ \textbf{AGREEMENT,} \ \textbf{EXAMPLE}$

Exhibit D - PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE, EXAMPLE

Exhibit E - CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE

Exhibit F – FEDERAL FUNDS CERTIFICATIONS

EXHIBIT A RESPONSE FOR COOPERATIVE CONTRACT

1.0 Scope of Cooperative Contract

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement or in the Administration Agreement between Supplier and OMNIA Partners.

1.1 Requirement

Region 4 Education Service Center (hereinafter defined and referred to as "Principal Procurement Agency"), on behalf of itself and the National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company, a Delaware corporation d/b/a OMNIA Partners, Public Sector ("OMNIA Partners"), is requesting proposals for Internet Service Providers for TEA Texas Connect. The intent of this Request for Proposal is any contract between Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier resulting from this Request for Proposal ("Master Agreement") be made available to other public agencies ("Public Agencies"), through OMNIA Partners' cooperative purchasing program. Principal Procurement Agency has executed a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate with OMNIA Partners, an example of which is included as Exhibit D, and has agreed to pursue the Master Agreement. Use of the Master Agreement by any Public Agency is preceded by their registration with OMNIA Partners as a Participating Public Agency in OMNIA Partners' cooperative purchasing program. Registration with OMNIA Partners as a Participating Public Agency is accomplished by Public Agencies entering into a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, an example of which is attached as Exhibit C, and by using the Master Agreement, any such Participating Public Agency agrees that it is registered with OMNIA Partners, whether pursuant to the terms of the Master Intergovernmental Purchasing Cooperative Agreement or as otherwise agreed to. The terms and pricing established in the resulting Master Agreement between the Supplier and the Principal Procurement Agency will be the same as that available to Participating Public Agencies through OMNIA Partners.

All transactions, purchase orders, invoices, payments etc., will occur directly between the Supplier and each Participating Public Agency individually, and neither OMNIA Partners, any Principal Procurement Agency nor any Participating Public Agency, including their respective agents, directors, employees or representatives, shall be liable to Supplier for any acts, liabilities, damages, etc., incurred by any other Participating Public Agency. Supplier is responsible for knowing the tax laws in each state.

This Exhibit A defines the expectations for qualifying Suppliers based on OMNIA Partners' requirements to market the resulting Master Agreement to Public Agencies. Each section in this Exhibit A refers to the capabilities, requirements, obligations, and prohibitions of competing Suppliers in order to serve Participating Public Agencies through OMNIA Partners.

These requirements are incorporated into and are considered an integral part of this RFP. OMNIA Partners reserves the right to determine whether or not to make the Master Agreement awarded by the Principal Procurement Agency available to Participating Public Agencies, in its sole and absolute discretion, and any party submitting a response to this RFP acknowledges that any award by the Principal Procurement Agency does not obligate OMNIA Partners to make the Master Agreement available to Participating Procurement Agencies.

1.2 Marketing, Sales and Administrative Support

During the term of the Master Agreement OMNIA Partners intends to provide marketing, sales, partnership development and administrative support for Supplier pursuant to this section that directly promotes the Supplier's products and services to Participating Public Agencies through multiple channels, each designed to promote specific products and services to Public Agencies.

OMNIA Partners will assign the Supplier a Director of Partner Development who will serve as the main point of contact for the Supplier and will be responsible for managing the overall relationship between the Supplier and OMNIA Partners. The Director of Partner Development will work with the Supplier to develop a comprehensive strategy to promote the Master Agreement and will connect the Supplier with appropriate stakeholders within OMNIA Partners including, Sales, Marketing, Contracting, Training, and Operations & Support.

The OMNIA Partners marketing team will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master Agreement Public Agencies through channels that may include:

- A. Marketing collateral (print, electronic, email, presentations)
- B. Website
- C. Trade shows/conferences/meetings
- D. Advertising
- E. Social Media

The OMNIA Partners contracting teams will work in conjunction with Supplier to promote the Master Agreement to both existing Participating Public Agencies and prospective Public Agencies through:

- A. Serving as the subject matter expert for questions regarding joint powers authority and state statutes and regulations for cooperative purchasing
- D. Regular business reviews to monitor program success
- E. General contract administration

Suppliers are required to pay an administrative fee of 3% of the greater of the Contract Sales under the Master Agreement and Guaranteed Contract Sales under this Request for Proposal. Supplier will be required to execute the OMNIA Partners Administration Agreement (Exhibit B).

1.3 Estimated Volume

The dollar volume purchased under the Master Agreement is estimated to be approximately \$100 million in the State of Texas. While no minimum volume is guaranteed to Supplier, the estimated annual volume is projected based on the current annual volumes among the Principal Procurement Agency, other Participating Public Agencies that are anticipated to utilize the resulting Master Agreement to be made available to them through OMNIA Partners, and volume growth into other Public Agencies through a coordinated marketing approach between Supplier and OMNIA Partners.

1.4 Award Basis

The basis of any contract award resulting from this RFP made by Principal Procurement Agency will, at OMNIA Partners' option, be the basis of award on a through OMNIA Partners. If multiple Suppliers are awarded by Principal Procurement Agency under the Master Agreement, those same Suppliers will be required to extend the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through OMNIA Partners. Utilization of the Master Agreement by Participating Public Agencies will be at the discretion of the individual Participating Public Agency. Certain terms of the Master Agreement specifically applicable to the Principal Procurement Agency (e.g. governing law) are subject to modification for each Participating Public Agency as Supplier, such Participating Public Agency and OMNIA Partners shall agree without being in conflict with the Master Agreement. Participating Agencies may request to enter into a separate supplemental agreement to further define the level of service requirements over and above the minimum defined in the Master Agreement (i.e. invoice requirements, order requirements, specialized delivery, diversity requirements such as minority and woman owned businesses, historically underutilized business, governing law, etc.) ("Supplemental Agreement"). It shall be the responsibility of the Supplier to comply, when applicable, with the prevailing wage legislation in effect in the jurisdiction of the Participating Agency. It shall further be the responsibility of the Supplier to monitor the prevailing wage rates as established by the appropriate department of labor for any increase in rates during the term of the Master Agreement and adjust wage rates accordingly. In instances where supplemental terms and conditions create additional risk and cost for Supplier, Supplier and Participating Public Agency may negotiate additional pricing above and beyond the stated contract not-to-exceed pricing so long as the added price is commensurate with the additional cost incurred by the Supplier. Any supplemental agreement developed as a result of the Master Agreement is exclusively between the Participating Agency and the Supplier (Contract Sales are reported to OMNIA Partners).

All signed Supplemental Agreements and purchase orders issued and accepted by the Supplier may survive expiration or termination of the Master Agreement. Participating Agencies' purchase orders may exceed the term of the Master Agreement if the purchase order is issued prior to the expiration of the Master Agreement. Supplier is responsible for reporting all sales and paying the applicable administrative fee for sales that use the Master Agreement as the basis for the purchase order, even though Master Agreement may have expired.

1.5 Objectives of Cooperative Program

This RFP is intended to achieve the following objectives regarding availability through OMNIA Partners' cooperative program:

- A. Provide a comprehensive competitively solicited and awarded agreement offering the Products covered by this solicitation to Participating Public Agencies;
- B. Achieve cost savings for Supplier and Public Agencies through a single solicitation process that will reduce the Supplier's need to respond to multiple solicitations and Public Agencies need to conduct their own solicitation process;
- C. Combine the aggregate purchasing volumes of Participating Public Agencies to achieve cost effective pricing.

2.0 REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

As a condition to Supplier entering into the Master Agreement, which would be available to all Public Agencies, Supplier must make certain representations, warranties and covenants to both the Principal Procurement Agency and OMNIA Partners designed to ensure the success of the Master Agreement for all Participating Public Agencies as well as the Supplier.

2.1 Corporate Commitment

Supplier commits that (1) the Master Agreement has received all necessary corporate authorizations and support of the Supplier's executive management, and (2) that the Supplier has read and agrees to the terms and conditions of the Administration Agreement with OMNIA Partners and will execute such agreement concurrent with and as a condition of its execution of the Master Agreement with the Principal Procurement Agency. Supplier will identify an executive corporate sponsor and a separate account manager within the RFP response that will be responsible for the overall management of the Master Agreement.

2.2 Pricing Commitment

Supplier commits the not-to-exceed pricing provided under the Master Agreement pricing is its lowest available (net to buyer) to Public Agencies and further commits that if a Participating Public Agency is eligible for lower pricing through a national, state, regional or local or cooperative contract, the Supplier will match such lower pricing to that Participating Public Agency under the Master Agreement.

2.3 Sales Commitment

Supplier commits that all Master Agreement sales will be accurately and timely reported to OMNIA Partners in accordance with the OMNIA Partners Administration Agreement.

3.0 SUPPLIER RESPONSE

Supplier must supply the following information in order for the Principal Procurement Agency to determine Supplier's qualifications to extend the resulting Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies through OMNIA Partners.

3.1 Company

- A. Brief history and description of Supplier to include experience providing similar products and services.
- B. Number and location of support centers (if applicable) and location of corporate office.
- C. Annual sales for the three previous fiscal years.
 - a. Submit FEIN and Dunn & Bradstreet report.
- D. Describe any green or environmental initiatives or policies.
- E. Describe any diversity programs or partners supplier does business with and how Participating Agencies may use diverse partners through the Master Agreement. Indicate how, if at all, pricing changes when using the diversity program. If there are any diversity programs, provide a list of diversity alliances and a copy of their certifications.
- F. Indicate if supplier holds any of the below certifications in any classified areas and include proof of such certification in the response:

a.	Minority W	omen Business Enterprise
	☐ Yes	□No
	If yes, list co	ertifying agency:
b.	Small Busine (DBE)	ess Enterprise (SBE) or Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
	☐ Yes	□No
	If yes, list co	ertifying agency:
c.	☐ Yes	Underutilized Business (HUB) No ertifying agency:
d.	Historically	Underutilized Business Zone Enterprise (HUBZone)
	☐ Yes If yes, list co	☐ No ertifying agency:
e.	Other recog	nized diversity certificate holder
	☐ Yes	□No
	If yes, list co	ertifying agency:

G. List any relationships with subcontractors or affiliates intended to be used when providing services and identify if subcontractors meet minority-owned standards. If any, list which certifications subcontractors hold and certifying agency.

- H. Describe how supplier differentiates itself from its competitors.
- I. Felony Conviction Notice: Indicate if the supplier
 - a. is a publicly held corporation and this reporting requirement is not applicable;
 - b. is not owned or operated by anyone who has been convicted of a felony; or
 - c. is owned or operated by and individual(s) who has been convicted of a felony and provide the names and convictions.
- J. Describe any debarment or suspension actions taken against supplier

3.2 Distribution, Logistics

- A. Identify all other companies that will be involved in processing, handling or shipping the products/service to the end user.
- B. Provide the number, size and location of Supplier's distribution facilities, warehouses and retail network as applicable.

3.3 Marketing and Sales

- A. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement describing the strategy to immediately implement the Master Agreement to include, but not limited to, executive leadership endorsement and sponsorship of the award within first 10 days
- B. Provide a detailed ninety-day plan beginning from award date of the Master Agreement describing the strategy to market the Master Agreement immediately upon award, which may include, but not limited to:
 - i. Announcement, Master Agreement details and contact information published on the Supplier's website within first 90 days
 - ii. Design, publication and distribution of co-branded marketing materials within first 90 days
 - iii. Ongoing marketing and promotion of the Master Agreement throughout its term (case studies, collateral pieces, presentations, promotions, etc.)
 - iv. Dedicated OMNIA Partners internet web-based homepage on Supplier's website with:
 - OMNIA Partners standard logo;
 - Copy of original Request for Proposal;
 - Copy of Master Agreement and amendments between Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier;
 - Summary of Products and pricing;
 - Marketing Materials

- Electronic link to OMNIA Partners' website including the online registration page;
- A dedicated toll-free number and email address for OMNIA Partners
- C. Include a list of current cooperative contracts (regional and national) Supplier holds.
- D. Acknowledge Supplier agrees to provide its logo(s) to OMNIA Partners and agrees to provide permission for reproduction of such logo in marketing communications and promotions. Acknowledge that use of OMNIA Partners logo will require permission for reproduction, as well.
- E. Provide the name, title, email and phone number for the person(s), who will be responsible for:
 - i. Executive Support
 - ii. Marketing
 - iii. Sales
 - iv. Sales Support
 - v. Financial Reporting
 - vi. Accounts Payable
 - vii. Contracts

EXHIBIT B ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE

ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

THIS ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made this day of 20, between National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company, a Delaware corporation d/b/a OMNIA Partners, Public Sector ("OMNIA Partners"), and ("Supplier").
RECITALS
WHEREAS, the (the "Principal Procurement Agency") has entered into a Master Agreement effective, Agreement No, by and between the Principal Procurement Agency and Supplier, (as may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof, the "Master Agreement"), as attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth herein, for the purchase of (the "Product");
WHEREAS, said Master Agreement provides that any or all public agencies, including state and local governmental entities, public and private primary, secondary and higher education entities, non-profit entities, and agencies for the public benefit (collectively, "Public Agencies"), that register (either via registration on the OMNIA Partners website or execution of a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit B) (each, hereinafter referred to as a "Participating Public Agency") may purchase Product at prices stated in the Master Agreement;
WHEREAS, Participating Public Agencies may access the Master Agreement which is offered through OMNIA Partners to Public Agencies;
WHEREAS, OMNIA Partners serves as the contract administrator of the Master Agreement on behalf of Principal Procurement Agency;
WHEREAS, Principal Procurement Agency desires OMNIA Partners to proceed with administration of the Master Agreement; and
WHEREAS, OMNIA Partners and Supplier desire to enter into this Agreement to make available the Master Agreement to Participating Public Agencies and to set forth certain terms and conditions governing the relationship between OMNIA Partners and Supplier.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the payments to be made hereunder and the mutual covenants contained in this Agreement, OMNIA Partners and Supplier hereby agree as follows:
DEFINITIONS
1. Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Master Agreement.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 2. The Master Agreement and the terms and conditions contained therein shall apply to this Agreement except as expressly changed or modified by this Agreement. Supplier acknowledges and agrees that the covenants and agreements of Supplier set forth in the solicitation and Supplier's response thereto resulting in the Master Agreement are incorporated herein and are an integral part hereof.
- 3. OMNIA Partners shall be afforded all of the rights, privileges and indemnifications afforded to Principal Procurement Agency by or from Supplier under the Master Agreement, and such rights, privileges and indemnifications shall accrue and apply with equal effect to OMNIA Partners, its agents, employees, directors, and representatives under this Agreement including, but not limited to, Supplier's obligation to obtain appropriate insurance.
- 4. OMNIA Partners shall perform all of its duties, responsibilities and obligations as contract administrator of the Master Agreement on behalf of Principal Procurement Agency as set forth herein, and Supplier hereby acknowledges and agrees that all duties, responsibilities and obligations will be undertaken by OMNIA Partners solely in its capacity as the contract administrator under the Master Agreement.
- Public Agency pursuant to the Master Agreement, OMNIA Partners shall not be: (i) construed as a dealer, re-marketer, representative, partner or agent of any type of the Supplier, Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency; (ii) obligated, liable or responsible for any order for Product made by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency or any employee thereof under the Master Agreement or for any payment required to be made with respect to such order for Product; and (iii) obligated, liable or responsible for any failure by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency to comply with procedures or requirements of applicable law or the Master Agreement or to obtain the due authorization and approval necessary to purchase under the Master Agreement. OMNIA Partners makes no representation or guaranty with respect to any minimum purchases by Principal Procurement Agency or any Participating Public Agency or any employee thereof under this Agreement or the Master Agreement.
- 6. OMNIA Partners shall not be responsible for Supplier's performance under the Master Agreement, and Supplier shall hold OMNIA Partners harmless from any liability that may arise from the acts or omissions of Supplier in connection with the Master Agreement.
- 7. Supplier acknowledges that, in connection with its access to OMNIA Partners confidential information and/or supply of data to OMNIA Partners, it has complied with and shall continue to comply with all laws, regulations and standards that may apply to Supplier, including, without limitation: (a) United States federal and state information security and privacy statutes, regulations and/or best practices, including, without limitation, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, the Massachusetts Data Security Regulations (201 C.M.R. 17.00 et. seq.), the Nevada encryption statute (N.R.S. § 603A), the California data security law (Cal. Civil Code § 1798.80 et. seq.) and California Consumer Privacy Act (Cal. Civil Code § 1798.100 et. seq.); and (b) applicable industry and regulatory standards and best practices (collectively, "Data Regulations").

With regard to Personal Information that Supplier collects, receives, or otherwise processes under the Agreement or otherwise in connection with performance of the Agreement, Supplier agrees that it will not: (i) sell, rent, release, disclose, disseminate, make available, transfer, or otherwise

communicate orally, in writing, or by electronic or other means, such Personal Information to another business or third party for monetary or other valuable consideration; or (ii) retain, use, or disclose such Personal Information outside of the direct business relationship between Supplier and OMNIA Partners or for any purpose other than for the specific purpose of performance of the Agreement, including retaining, using, or disclosing such Personal Information for a commercial purpose other than for performance of the Agreement. By entering into the Agreement, Supplier certifies that it understands the specific restrictions contained in this Section 7 and will comply with them. For purposes hereof, "Personal Information" means information that identifies, relates to, describes, is reasonably capable of being associated with, or could reasonably be linked, directly or indirectly, with a particular consumer or household, and includes the specific elements of "personal information" as defined under Data Regulations, as defined herein. Supplier will reasonably assist OMNIA Partners in timely responding to any third party "request to know" or "request to delete" (as defined pursuant to Data Regulations) and will promptly provide OMNIA Partners with information reasonably necessary for OMNIA Partners to respond to such requests. Where Supplier collects Personal Information directly from Public Agencies or others on OMNIA Partners' behalf, Supplier will maintain records and the means necessary to enable OMNIA Partners to respond to such requests to know and requests to delete.

8. WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, OMNIA PARTNERS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES REGARDING OMNIA PARTNERS' PERFORMANCE AS A CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR OF THE MASTER AGREEMENT. OMNIA PARTNERS SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR RELIANCE DAMAGES, EVEN IF OMNIA PARTNERS IS ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES.

TERM OF AGREEMENT; TERMINATION

9. This Agreement shall be in effect so long as the Master Agreement remains in effect, provided, however, that the provisions of Sections 3-8 and 11-22, hereof and the indemnifications afforded by the Supplier to OMNIA Partners in the Master Agreement, to the extent such provisions survive any expiration or termination of the Master Agreement, shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

PROMOTION

- 10. OMNIA Partners and Supplier shall publicize and promote the availability of the Master Agreement's products and services to Public Agencies and such agencies' employees. Supplier shall require each Public Agency to register its participation in the OMNIA Partners program by either registering on the OMNIA Partners website (www.omniapartners.com/publicsector), or executing a Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement prior to processing the Participating Public Agency's first sales order. Upon request, Supplier shall make available to interested Public Agencies a copy of the Master Agreement and such price lists or quotes as may be necessary for such Public Agencies to evaluate potential purchases.
- 11. Supplier shall provide such marketing and administrative support as set forth in the solicitation resulting in the Master Agreement, including assisting in development of marketing materials as reasonably requested by Principal Procurement Agency and OMNIA Partners. Supplier shall be responsible for obtaining permission or license of use and payment of any license fees for all content and images Supplier provides to OMNIA Partners or posts on the OMNIA Partners website.

Supplier shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNIA Partners for use of all such content and images including copyright infringement claims. Supplier and OMNIA Partners each hereby grant to the other party a limited, revocable, non-transferable, non-sublicensable right to use such party's logo (each, the "Logo") solely for use in marketing the Master Agreement. Each party shall provide the other party with the standard terms of use of such party's Logo, and such party shall comply with such terms in all material respects. Both parties shall obtain approval from the other party prior to use of such party's Logo. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties understand and agree that except as provided herein neither party shall have any right, title or interest in the other party's Logo. Upon termination of this Agreement, each party shall immediately cease use of the other party's Logo.

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE, REPORTING & PAYMENT

- 12. An "Administrative Fee" shall be defined and due to OMNIA Partners from Supplier in the amount of __ percent (__%) ("Administrative Fee Percentage") multiplied by the total purchase amount paid to Supplier, less refunds, credits on returns, rebates and discounts, for the sale of products and/or services to Principal Procurement Agency and Participating Public Agencies pursuant to the Master Agreement (as amended from time to time and including any renewal thereof) ("Contract Sales"). From time to time the parties may mutually agree in writing to a lower Administrative Fee Percentage for a specifically identified Participating Public Agency's Contract Sales.
- 13. Supplier shall provide OMNIA Partners with an electronic accounting report monthly, in the format prescribed by OMNIA Partners, summarizing all Contract Sales for each calendar month. The Contract Sales reporting format is provided as Exhibit C ("Contract Sales Report"), attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Contract Sales Reports for each calendar month shall be provided by Supplier to OMNIA Partners by the 10th day of the following month. Failure to provide a Contract Sales Report within the time and manner specified herein shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice to Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement, at Principal Procurement Agency's sole discretion, and/or this Agreement, at OMNIA Partners' sole discretion.
- 14. Administrative Fee payments are to be paid by Supplier to OMNIA Partners at the frequency and on the due date stated in Section 12, above, for Supplier's submission of corresponding Contract Sales Reports. Administrative Fee payments are to be made via Automated Clearing House (ACH) to the OMNIA Partners designated financial institution identified in Exhibit D. Failure to provide a payment of the Administrative Fee within the time and manner specified herein shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and if not cured within thirty (30) days of written notice to Supplier shall be deemed a cause for termination of the Master Agreement, at Principal Procurement Agency's sole discretion, and/or this Agreement, at OMNIA Partners' sole discretion. All Administrative Fees not paid when due shall bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of one and one-half percent (1 1/2%) per month or the maximum rate permitted by law until paid in full.
- 15. Supplier shall maintain an accounting of all purchases made by Participating Public Agencies under the Master Agreement. OMNIA Partners, or its designee, in OMNIA Partners' sole discretion, reserves the right to compare Participating Public Agency records with Contract Sales Reports submitted by Supplier for a period of four (4) years from the date OMNIA Partners receives such report. In addition, OMNIA Partners may engage a third party to conduct an independent audit of Supplier's monthly reports. In the event of such an audit, Supplier shall provide all materials reasonably requested relating to such audit by OMNIA Partners at the location designated by OMNIA Partners. In the event an underreporting of Contract Sales and a resulting underpayment of

Administrative Fees is revealed, OMNIA Partners will notify the Supplier in writing. Supplier will have thirty (30) days from the date of such notice to resolve the discrepancy to OMNIA Partners' reasonable satisfaction, including payment of any Administrative Fees due and owing, together with interest thereon in accordance with Section 13, and reimbursement of OMNIA Partners' costs and expenses related to such audit.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 16. This Agreement, the Master Agreement and the exhibits referenced herein supersede any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereto and no other agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained or incorporated herein shall be valid or binding. In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and the Master Agreement, as between OMNIA Partners and Supplier, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.
- 17. If any action at law or in equity is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement or to recover any Administrative Fee and accrued interest, the prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and costs in addition to any other relief to which it may be entitled.
- 18. This Agreement and OMNIA Partners' rights and obligations hereunder may be assigned at OMNIA Partners' sole discretion to an affiliate of OMNIA Partners, any purchaser of any or all or substantially all of the assets of OMNIA Partners, or the successor entity as a result of a merger, reorganization, consolidation, conversion or change of control, whether by operation of law or otherwise. Supplier may not assign its obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of OMNIA Partners.
- 19. All written communications given hereunder shall be delivered by first-class mail, postage prepaid, or overnight delivery on receipt to the addresses as set forth below.

A. OMNIA Partners:

OMNIA Partners Attn: President 840 Crescent Centre Drive Suite 600 Franklin, TN 37067

B.	Sup	oplier:							
						-			

20. If any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed to be, or shall in fact be, illegal, inoperative or unenforceable, the same shall not affect any other provision or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatever, and this Agreement will be construed by limiting or invalidating such provision to the minimum extent necessary to make such provision valid, legal and enforceable.

- 21. This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or altered without the prior written consent of the parties hereto, and no provision of this Agreement may be discharged or waived, except by a writing signed by the parties. A waiver of any particular provision will not be deemed a waiver of any other provision, nor will a waiver given on one occasion be deemed to apply to any other occasion.
- 22. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon OMNIA Partners, the Supplier and any respective successor and assign thereto; subject, however, to the limitations contained herein.
- 23. This Agreement will be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Delaware, excluding its conflicts of law provisions and any action arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be commenced solely and exclusively in the state or federal courts in Williamson County Tennessee.
- 24. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which is an original but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the same instrument. The exchange of copies of this Agreement and of signature pages by facsimile, or by .pdf or similar electronic transmission, will constitute effective execution and delivery of this Agreement as to the parties and may be used in lieu of the original Agreement for all purposes. Signatures of the parties transmitted by facsimile, or by .pdf or similar electronic transmission, will be deemed to be their original signatures for any purpose whatsoever.

[INSERT SUPPLIER ENTITY NAME]	NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY, A DELAWARE CORPORATION D/B/A OMNIA PARTNERS, PUBLIC SECTOR				
Signature	Signature				
	Sarah Vavra				
Name	Name				
	Sr. Vice President, Public Sector				
	Contracting				
Title	Title				
Date	Date				

EXHIBIT C MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT, EXAMPLE

MASTER INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING AGREEMENT

This Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (this "Agreement") is entered into by and between those certain government agencies that execute a Principal Procurement Agency Certificate ("Principal Procurement Agencies") with National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company, a Delaware corporation d/b/a OMNIA Partners, Public Sector and/or Communities Program Management, LLC, a California limited liability company d/b/a U.S. Communities (collectively, "OMNIA Partners") to be appended and made a part hereof and such other public agencies ("Participating Public Agencies") who register to participate in the cooperative purchasing programs administered by OMNIA Partners and its affiliates and subsidiaries (collectively, the "OMNIA Partners Parties") by either registering on the OMNIA Partners website (www.omniapartners.com/publicsector or any successor website), or by executing a copy of this Agreement.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, after a competitive solicitation and selection process by Principal Procurement Agencies, in compliance with their own policies, procedures, rules and regulations, a number of suppliers have entered into "Master Agreements" (herein so called) to provide a variety of goods, products and services ("Products") to the applicable Principal Procurement Agency and the Participating Public Agencies;

WHEREAS, Master Agreements are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies through the OMNIA Partners Parties and provide that Participating Public Agencies may purchase Products on the same terms, conditions and pricing as the Principal Procurement Agency, subject to any applicable federal and/or local purchasing ordinances and the laws of the State of purchase; and

WHEREAS, in addition to Master Agreements, the OMNIA Partners Parties may from time to time offer Participating Public Agencies the opportunity to acquire Products through other group purchasing agreements.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained in this Agreement, and of the mutual benefits to result, the parties hereby agree as follows:

- 1. Each party will facilitate the cooperative procurement of Products.
- 2. The Participating Public Agencies shall procure Products in accordance with and subject to the relevant federal, state and local statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations that govern Participating Public Agency's procurement practices. The Participating Public Agencies hereby acknowledge and agree that it is the intent of the parties that all provisions of this Agreement and that Principal Procurement Agencies' participation in the program described herein comply with all applicable laws, including but not limited to the requirements of 42 C.F.R. § 1001.952(j), as may be amended from time to time. The Participating Public Agencies further acknowledge and agree that they are solely responsible for their compliance with all applicable "safe harbor" regulations,

Requirements for Cooperative Contract Page 15 of 68 including but not limited to any and all obligations to fully and accurately report discounts and incentives.

- 3. The Participating Public Agency represents and warrants that the Participating Public Agency is not a hospital or other healthcare provider and is not purchasing Products on behalf of a hospital or healthcare provider.
- 4. The cooperative use of Master Agreements shall be in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Master Agreements, except as modification of those terms and conditions is otherwise required by applicable federal, state or local law, policies or procedures.
- 5. The Principal Procurement Agencies will make available, upon reasonable request, Master Agreement information which may assist in improving the procurement of Products by the Participating Public Agencies.
- 6. The Participating Public Agency agrees the OMNIA Partners Parties may provide access to group purchasing organization ("GPO") agreements directly or indirectly by enrolling the Participating Public Agency in another GPO's purchasing program provided the purchase of Products through the OMNIA Partners Parties or any other GPO shall be at the Participating Public Agency's sole discretion.
- 7. The Participating Public Agencies (each a "Procuring Party") that procure Products through any Master Agreement or GPO Product supply agreement (each a "GPO Contract") will make timely payments to the distributor, manufacturer or other vendor (collectively, "Supplier") for Products received in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement or GPO Contract, as applicable. Payment for Products and inspections and acceptance of Products ordered by the Procuring Party shall be the exclusive obligation of such Procuring Party. Disputes between Procuring Party and any Supplier shall be resolved in accordance with the law and venue rules of the State of purchase unless otherwise agreed to by the Procuring Party and Supplier.
- 8. The Procuring Party shall not use this Agreement as a method for obtaining additional concessions or reduced prices for purchase of similar products or services outside of the Master Agreement. Master Agreements may be structured with not-to-exceed pricing, in which cases the Supplier may offer the Procuring Party and the Procuring Party may accept lower pricing or additional concessions for purchase of Products through a Master Agreement.
- 9. The Procuring Party shall be responsible for the ordering of Products under this Agreement. A non-procuring party shall not be liable in any fashion for any violation by a Procuring Party, and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, the Procuring Party shall hold non-procuring party harmless from any liability that may arise from the acts or omissions of the Procuring Party.
- WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF THE FOREGOING, THE OMNIA 10. **PARTNERS PARTIES** EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL **EXPRESS** OR **IMPLIED** REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES REGARDING ANY PRODUCT, MASTER AGREEMENT AND GPO CONTRACT. THE OMNIA PARTNERS PARTIES SHALL NOT BE LIABLE IN ANY WAY FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, OR RELIANCE DAMAGES, EVEN IF THE OMNIA PARTNERS PARTIES ARE ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. FURTHER, THE PROCURING PARTY ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT THE OMNIA PARTNERS PARTIES SHALL HAVE NO LIABILITY FOR ANY ACT OR OMISSION BY A SUPPLIER OR

OTHER PARTY UNDER A MASTER AGREEMENT OR GPO CONTRACT.

- 11. This Agreement shall remain in effect until termination by either party giving thirty (30) days' written notice to the other party. The provisions of Paragraphs 6 10 hereof shall survive any such termination.
- 12. This Agreement shall take effect upon (i) execution of the Principal Procurement Agency Certificate, or (ii) registration on the OMNIA Partners website or the execution of this Agreement by a Participating Public Agency, as applicable.

NATIONAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL PURCHASING ALLIANCE COMPANY, A DELAWARE CORPORATION D/B/A OMNIA PARTNERS, PUBLIC SECTOR AND/OR COMMUNITIES PROGRAM MANAGEMENT, LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY D/B/A U.S. COMMUNITIES

Authorized Signature	Signature Sarah E. Vavra
Name	Name Sr. Vice President, Public Sector Contracting
Title and Agency Name	Title
Date	Date

EXHIBIT D PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE, EXAMPLE

PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY CERTIFICATE

In its capacity as a Principal Procurement Agency (as defined below) for National Intergovernmental Purchasing Alliance Company, a Delaware corporation d/b/a OMNIA Partners, Public Sector ("OMNIA Partners"), [NAME OF PPA] agrees to pursue Master Agreements for
Products as specified in the attached Exhibits to this Principal Procurement Agency Certificate.
I hereby acknowledge, in my capacity as of and on behalf of [NAME OF PPA] ("Principal Procurement Agency"), that I have read and hereby agree to the general terms and conditions set forth in the attached Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement regulating the use of the Master Agreements and purchase of Products that from time to time are made available by Principal Procurement Agencies to Participating Public Agencies nationwide through OMNIA Partners.
I understand that the purchase of one or more Products under the provisions of the Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is at the sole and complete discretion of the Participating Public Agency.
Authorized Signature, [PRINCIPAL PROCUREMENT AGENCY]
Signature
Name
Title
Date

EXHIBIT E CONTRACT SALES REPORTING TEMPLATE

Contract Sales Report submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel:

UNIVITA.		Supplier Hame:	- CANADA	Total Sales	\$0.00											
			Reporting Period.		Admin Fee 16 Total Admin Fee							3	FOR OMNIA USE ONLY			
Supplier Internal ID		Name	Street Address	Street Address 2	Chty	State	Postal Code	Transaction Outo	Seige Amount	Admin For %	Adrain Fee	Notes	Wildcard	Uniquald	Rebate Due	Robate Harne
			ļ													
-			+		_	\vdash						\vdash	\vdash	\vdash		
0.00			†													
			I													1
_			1		-	\vdash	-			-			-	_	\vdash	-
			1		_	-	_				_	\vdash	\vdash		 	
N = 100			Ι .													
					-	-	-			_			\vdash	\vdash	\vdash	-
_			+	-	-	+-	-				_	\vdash	-	\vdash	\vdash	
			1			1										
9																
0 0													_			
						-	_			-		_	┞	⊢—	-	-
			+	-	_	\vdash	-	_		_	_	-		-		
			+ -	-		\vdash	_					\vdash			-	
			-			-				_		\vdash	\vdash	\vdash		-
			+		 	\vdash			-	_		-		_		_
			 	 	_	-	_					-	1			
10.000000000000000000000000000000000000																
			 		-	\vdash	-	-		-	-	-	├		\vdash	₩
			+			\vdash	-					\vdash	-	_	\vdash	
	-		+		 	\vdash	 		 	 	\vdash	-	-		 	
					†					1						1

EXHIBIT F FEDERAL FUNDS CERTIFICATIONS

FEDERAL CERTIFICATIONS ADDENDUM FOR AGREEMENT FUNDED BY U.S. FEDERAL GRANT

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Participating Agencies may elect to use federal funds to purchase under the Master Agreement. This form should be completed and returned.

DEFINITIONS

Contract means a legal instrument by which a non–Federal entity purchases property or services needed to carry out the project or program under a Federal award. The term as used in this part does not include a legal instrument, even if the non–Federal entity considers it a contract, when the substance of the transaction meets the definition of a Federal award or subaward

Contractor means an entity that receives a contract as defined in Contract.

Cooperative agreement means a legal instrument of financial assistance between a Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity and a non–Federal entity that, consistent with 31 U.S.C. 6302–6305:

- (a) Is used to enter into a relationship the principal purpose of which is to transfer anything of value from the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity to the non–Federal entity to carry out a public purpose authorized by a law of the United States (see 31 U.S.C. 6101(3)); and not to acquire property or services for the Federal government or pass-through entity's direct benefit or use;
- (b) Is distinguished from a grant in that it provides for substantial involvement between the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity and the non–Federal entity in carrying out the activity contemplated by the Federal award.

(c) The term does not include:

(1) A cooperative research and development agreement as defined in 15 U.S.C. 3710a; or

(2) An agreement that provides only:

- (i) Direct United States Government cash assistance to an individual:
- (ii) A subsidy;
- (iii) A loan;
- (iv) A loan guarantee; or
- (v) Insurance.

Federal awarding agency means the Federal agency that provides a Federal award directly to a non-Federal entity

Federal award has the meaning, depending on the context, in either paragraph (a) or (b) of this section:

- (a)(1) The Federal financial assistance that a non–Federal entity receives directly from a Federal awarding agency or indirectly from a pass-through entity, as described in § 200.101 Applicability; or
 - (2) The cost-reimbursement contract under the Federal Acquisition Regulations that a non–Federal entity receives directly from a Federal awarding agency or indirectly from a pass-through entity, as described in § 200.101 Applicability.
- (b) The instrument setting forth the terms and conditions. The instrument is the grant agreement, cooperative agreement, other agreement for assistance covered in paragraph (b) of § 200.40 Federal financial assistance, or the cost-reimbursement contract awarded under the Federal Acquisition Regulations.
- (c) Federal award does not include other contracts that a Federal agency uses to buy goods or services from a contractor or a contract to operate Federal government owned, contractor operated facilities (GOCOs).
- (d) See also definitions of Federal financial assistance, grant agreement, and cooperative agreement.

Non–Federal entity means a state, local government, Indian tribe, institution of higher education (IHE), or nonprofit organization that carries out a Federal award as a recipient or subrecipient.

Nonprofit organization means any corporation, trust, association, cooperative, or other organization, not including IHEs, that:
(a) Is operated primarily for scientific, educational, service, charitable, or similar purposes in the public interest;

Requirements for Cooperative Contract Page 20 of 68

- (b) Is not organized primarily for profit; and
- (c) Uses net proceeds to maintain, improve, or expand the operations of the organization.

Obligations means, when used in connection with a non–Federal entity's utilization of funds under a Federal award, orders placed for property and services, contracts and subawards made, and similar transactions during a given period that require payment by the non–Federal entity during the same or a future period.

Pass-through entity means a non-Federal entity that provides a subaward to a subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program.

Recipient means a non–Federal entity that receives a Federal award directly from a Federal awarding agency to carry out an activity under a Federal program. The term recipient does not include subrecipients.

Simplified acquisition threshold means the dollar amount below which a non–Federal entity may purchase property or services using small purchase methods. Non–Federal entities adopt small purchase procedures in order to expedite the purchase of items costing less than the simplified acquisition threshold. The simplified acquisition threshold is set by the Federal Acquisition Regulation at 48 CFR Subpart 2.1 (Definitions) and in accordance with 41 U.S.C. 1908. As of the publication of this part, the simplified acquisition threshold is \$250,000, but this threshold is periodically adjusted for inflation. (Also see definition of § 200.67 Micropurchase.)

Subaward means an award provided by a pass-through entity to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal award received by the pass-through entity. It does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a beneficiary of a Federal program. A subaward may be provided through any form of legal agreement, including an agreement that the pass-through entity considers a contract.

Subrecipient means a non–Federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through entity to carry out part of a Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a beneficiary of such program. A subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal awards directly from a Federal awarding agency.

Termination means the ending of a Federal award, in whole or in part at any time prior to the planned end of period of performance.

The following certifications and provisions may be required and apply when Participating Agency expends federal funds for any purchase resulting from this procurement process. Pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.326, all contracts, including small purchases, awarded by the Participating Agency and the Participating Agency's subcontractors shall contain the procurement provisions of Appendix II to Part 200, as applicable.

APPENDIX II TO 2 CFR PART 200

(A) Contracts for more than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$250,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount determined by the Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) as authorized by 41 U.S.C. 1908, must address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

Pursuant to Federal Rule (A) above, when a Participating Agency expends federal funds, the Participating Agency reserves all rights and privileges under the applicable laws and regulations with respect to this procurement in the event of breach of contract by either party.

Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
(B) Termination for cause and for convenience by the effected and the basis for settlement. (All contracts in e	e grantee or subgrantee including the manner by which it will be excess of \$10,000)
Pursuant to Federal Rule (B) above, when a Participating A to immediately terminate any agreement in excess of \$10 default of the agreement by Offeror as detailed in the term	Agency expends federal funds, the Participating Agency reserves the right ,000 resulting from this procurement process in the event of a breach or s of the contract.
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror

(C) Equal Employment Opportunity. Except as otherwise provided under 41 CFR Part 60, all contracts that meet the definition of "federally assisted construction contract" in 41 CFR Part 60-1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 CFR 60-1.4(b), in accordance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity" (30 CFR 12319, 12935, 3 CFR Part, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," and implementing regulations at 41 CFR part 60, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor."

Pursuant to Federal Rule (C) above, when a Particip contract, the equal opportunity clause is incorporated by	pating Agency expends federal funds on any federally assisted construction by reference herein.						
Does offeror agree to abide by the above? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror						
construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awar with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, ar CFR Part 5, "Labor Standards Provisions Approximation"). In accordance with the statute, construction"). In accordance with the statute, construction are not less than the prevailing wages special addition, contractors must be required to pay wag of the current prevailing wage determination issues a contract or subcontract must be conditioned up must report all suspected or reported violations provision for compliance with the Copeland "And Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United Standard prohibited from inducing, by any means, any personal give up any part of the compensation to which is suspected or reported violations to the Federal awar Pursuant to Federal Rule (D) above, when a Partic contracts and subgrants for construction or repair, offer	ipating Agency expends federal funds during the term of an award for all ror will be in compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions.						
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror						
(E) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708). Where applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.							
Pursuant to Federal Rule (E) above, when a Particip compliance with all applicable provisions of the Contra contracts by Participating Agency resulting from this pro-	pating Agency expends federal funds, offeror certifies that offeror will be in act Work Hours and Safety Standards Act during the term of an award for all ocurement process.						
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror						
(F) Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement. If the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.							
Pursuant to Federal Rule (F) above, when federal fun- term of an award for all contracts by Participating Ager all applicable requirements as referenced in Federal Ru	ds are expended by Participating Agency, the offeror certifies that during the ncy resulting from this procurement process, the offeror agrees to comply with ale (F) above.						
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror						
Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of to agree to comply with all applicable standards, or	ederal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387), as amended— \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the non- Federal award ders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401- t as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the e of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)						

Pursuant to Federal Rule (G) above, when federal funds are exp term of an award for all contracts by Participating Agency mer to comply with all applicable requirements as referenced in Federal	needed by Participating Agency, the offeror certifies that during the offer resulting from this procurement process, the offeror agrees al Rule (G) above.
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions in the Executive Office of the President Office of Management Executive Orders 12549 (3 CFR part 1986 Comp., p. 189)	d 12689)—A contract award (see 2 CFR 180.220) must not be the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with and Budget (OMB) guidelines at 2 CFR 180 that implement and 12689 (3 CFR part 1989 Comp., p. 235), "Debarment and debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as bry authority other than Executive Order 12549.
term of an award for all contracts by Participating Agency resulti it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed participation by any federal department or agency. If at any time	ended by Participating Agency, the offeror certifies that during the ng from this procurement process, the offeror certifies that neither d for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from e during the term of an award the offeror or its principals becomes gible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal ncy.
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
must file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the ti funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or at member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award of	tractors that apply or bid for an award exceeding \$100,000 er above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated tempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a an employee of a member of Congress in connection with covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any ction with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are
term and after the awarded term of an award for all contracts by offeror certifies that it is in compliance with all applicable provision undersigned further certifies that: (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awards of a Federal loan, the entering into a cooperative agreement, and of a Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobb	tification be included in the award documents for all covered sub- rs and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.
RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS FO	R CONTRACTS INVOLVING FEDERAL FUNDS
that it will comply with the record retention requirements detailed	y contract resulting from this procurement process, offeror certifies d in 2 CFR § 200.333. The offeror further certifies that offeror will riod of three years after grantees or subgrantees submit final olicable, and all other pending matters are closed.
	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
	E ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT
When Participating Agency expends federal funds for any contra will comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and	act resulting from this procurement process, offeror certifies that it g to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy d Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. 6321 et seq.; 49 C.F.R. Part 18).

Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIAN	CE WITH BUY AMERICA PROVISIONS
To the extent purchases are made with Federal Highway Admini Administration funds, offeror certifies that its products comply wiprovide such certification or applicable waiver with respect to sp. Purchases made in accordance with the Buy America Act must open competition.	th all applicable provisions of the Buy America Act and agrees to pecific products to any Participating Agency upon request
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
CERTIFICATION OF ACCESS	S TO RECORDS – 2 C.F.R. § 200.336
documents, papers, or other records of offeror that are pertine	ny of their duly authorized representatives shall have access to any ent to offeror's discharge of its obligations under the Contract for the criptions. The right also includes timely and reasonable access to elating to such documents.
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
CERTIFICATION OF APPLIC	CABILITY TO SUBCONTRACTORS
Offeror agrees that all contracts it awards pursuant to the Contra	act shall be bound by the foregoing terms and conditions.
Does offeror agree? YES	Initials of Authorized Representative of offeror
Offeror agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local law further acknowledged that offeror certifies compliance with noted above.	ws, rules, regulations and ordinances, as applicable. It is all provisions, laws, acts, regulations, etc. as specifically
Offeror's Name:	
Address, City, State, and Zip Code:	
Phone Number:	Fax Number:
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Representative:	
Email Address:	
Signature of Authorized Representative:	Date:

FEMA SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Awarded Supplier(s) may need to respond to events and losses where products and services are needed for the immediate and initial response to emergency situations such as, but not limited to, water damage, fire damage, vandalism cleanup, biohazard cleanup, sewage decontamination, deodorization, and/or wind damage during a disaster or emergency situation. By submitting a proposal, the Supplier is accepted these FEMA Special Conditions required by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

"Contract" in the below pages under FEMA SPECIAL CONDITIONS is also referred to and defined as the "Master Agreement".

"Contractor" in the below pages under FEMA SPECIAL CONDITIONS is also referred to and defined as "Supplier" or "Awarded Supplier".

Conflicts of Interest

No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by a FEMA award if he or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such a conflict would arise when the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of these parties, has a financial or other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for award. 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1); See also Standard Form 424D, ¶ 7; Standard Form 424B, ¶ 3. i. FEMA considers a "financial interest" to be the potential for gain or loss to the employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of these parties as a result of the particular procurement. The prohibited financial interest may arise from ownership of certain financial instruments or investments such as stock, bonds, or real estate, or from a salary, indebtedness, job offer, or similar interest that might be affected by the particular procurement. ii. FEMA considers an "apparent" conflict of interest to exist where an actual conflict does not exist, but where a reasonable person with knowledge of the relevant facts would question the impartiality of the employee, officer, or agent participating in the procurement. c. Gifts. The officers, employees, and agents of the Participating Public Agency nor the Participating Public Agency ("NFE") must neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts. However, NFE's may set standards for situations in which the financial interest is de minimus, not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal value. 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1). d. Violations. The NFE's written standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such standards by officers, employees, or agents of the NFE. 2 C.F.R. § 200.318(c)(1). For example, the penalty for a NFE's employee may be dismissal, and the penalty for a contractor might be the termination of the contract.

Contractor Integrity

A contractor must have a satisfactory record of integrity and business ethics. Contractors that are debarred or suspended as described in Chapter III, ¶ 6.d must be rejected and cannot receive contract awards at any level.

<u>Public Policy</u>

A contractor must comply with the public policies of the Federal Government and state, local government, or tribal government. This includes, among other things, past and current compliance with the:

- a. Equal opportunity and nondiscrimination laws
- b. Five affirmative steps described at 2 C.F.R. § 200.321(b) for all subcontracting under contracts supported by FEMA financial assistance; and FEMA Procurement Guidance June 21, 2016 Page IV- 7
- c. Applicable prevailing wage laws, regulations, and executive orders

Affirmative Steps

For any subcontracting opportunities, Contractor must take the following Affirmative steps:

- 1. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists;
- 2. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources;
- 3. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;
- 4. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and

5. Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

Prevailing Wage Requirements

When applicable, the awarded Contractor (s) and any and all subcontractor(s) agree to comply with all laws regarding prevailing wage rates including the Davis-Bacon Act, applicable to this solicitation and/or Participating Public Agencies. The Participating Public Agency shall notify the Contractor of the applicable pricing/prevailing wage rates and must apply any local wage rates requested. The Contractor and any subcontractor(s) shall comply with the prevailing wage rates set by the Participating Public Agency.

Federal Requirements

If products and services are issued in response to an emergency or disaster recovery the items below, located in this FEMA Special Conditions section of the Federal Funds Certifications, are activated and required when federal funding may be utilized.

2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, Required Contract Clauses

1. <u>Termination for Convenience:</u>

The right to terminate this Contract for the convenience of the Participating Public Agency is retained by the Participating Public Agency. In the event of a termination for convenience by the Participating Public Agency, the Participating Public Agency shall, at least ten (10) calendar days in advance, deliver written notice of the termination for convenience to Contractor. Upon Contractor's receipt of such written notice, Contractor immediately shall cease the performance of the Work and shall take reasonable and appropriate action to secure and protect the Work then in place. Contractor shall then be paid by the Participating Public Agency, in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Contract Documents, an amount not to exceed the actual labor costs incurred, the actual cost of all materials installed and the actual cost of all materials stored at the project site or away from the project site, as approved in writing by the Participating Public Agency but not yet paid for and which cannot be returned, and actual, reasonable and documented demobilization costs, if any, paid by Contractor and approved by the Participating Public Agency in connection with the Scope of Work in place which is completed as of the date of termination by the Participating Public Agency and that is in conformance with the Contract Documents, less all amounts previously paid for the Work. No amount ever shall be owed or paid to Contractor for lost or anticipated profits on any part of the Scope of Work not performed or for consequential damages of any kind.

2. Equal Employment Opportunity:

The Participating Public Agency highly encourages Contractors to implement Affirmative Action practices in their employment programs. This means Contractor should not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, pregnancy, sexual orientation, political belief or affiliation, age, disability or genetic information.

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

- (3) The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.
- (4) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (5) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (6) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (7) In the event of the contractor's non-compliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- (8) The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: *Provided*, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

3. "During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

- (1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- (2) The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- (3) The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the

- contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- (4) The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- (5) The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- (6) In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions as may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided bylaw.
- (7) The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, That in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States."

4. Davis Bacon Act and Copeland Anti-KickbackAct.

- a. Applicability of Davis-Bacon Act. The Davis-Bacon Act only applies to the emergency Management Preparedness Grant Program, Homeland Security Grant Program, Nonprofit Security Grant Program, Tribal Homeland Security Grant Program, Port Security Grant Program, and Transit Security Grant Program. It does not apply to other FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs, including the Public Assistance Program.
- b. All prime construction contracts in excess of \$2,000 awarded by non-Federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3144 and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 5 (Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted Construction)). See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ D.
- c. In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay wages not less than once aweek.
- d. The non-Federal entity must place a copy of the current prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the wage determination. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to the Federal awarding agency.

- e. In contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act, the contracts must also include a provision for compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 3 (Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States). The Copeland Anti- Kickback Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-Federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to FEMA.
- f. The regulation at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(a) does provide the required contract clause that applies to compliance with both the Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts. However, as discussed in the previous subsection, the Davis-Bacon Act does not apply to Public Assistance recipients and subrecipients. In situations where the Davis-Bacon Act does not apply, neither does the Copeland "Anti-Kickback Act." However, for purposes of grant programs where both clauses do apply, FEMA requires the following contract clause:

"Compliance with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act.

- (1) Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract.
- (2) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause above and such other clauses as the FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses
- (3) Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12."

5. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

- a. <u>Applicability</u>: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.
- b. Where applicable (see 40 U.S.C. § 3701), all contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations at 29 C.F.R. Part 5. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ E.
- c. Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the workweek.
- d. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence.
- e. The regulation at 29 C.F.R. § 5.5(b) provides the required contract clause concerning compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act:

"Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act.

- Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.
- (3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The (write in the name of the Federal agency or the loan or grant recipient) shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.
- (4) Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section."

6. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement.

a. <u>Stafford Act Disaster Grants</u>. This requirement <u>does not apply to the Public Assistance</u>, Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Fire Management Assistance Grant Program, Crisis Counseling Assistance and Training Grant Program, Disaster Case Management Grant Program, and Federal Assistance to Individuals and Households – Other Needs Assistance Grant Program, as

FEMA awards under these programs do not meet the definition of "funding agreement."

b. If the FEMA award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 C.F.R.§ 401.2(a) and the non-Federal entity wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the non-Federal entity must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. Part 401 (Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements), and any implementing regulations issued by FEMA. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ F.

- c. The regulation at 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) currently defines "funding agreement" as any contract, grant, or cooperative agreement entered into between any Federal agency, other than the Tennessee Valley Authority, and any contractor for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work funded in whole or in part by the Federal government. This term also includes any assignment, substitution of parties, or subcontract of any type entered into for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under a funding agreement as defined in the first sentence of this paragraph.
- 7. Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act. Contracts of amounts in excess of \$150,000 must contain a provision that requires the contractor to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C.§§ 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to FEMA and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ G.
 - a. The following provides a sample contract clause concerning compliance for contracts of amounts in excess of \$150,000:

"Clean Air Act

- (1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C.§ 7401 et seq.
- (2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) and understands and agrees that the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the (name of recipient), Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
- (3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

- (1) The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.
- (2) The contractor agrees to report each violation to the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) and understands and agrees that the (name of the state agency or local or Indian tribal government) will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the (name of recipient), Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
- (3) The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in partwith Federal assistance provided by FEMA."

8. Debarment and Suspension.

- a. <u>Applicability:</u> This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.
- b. Non-federal entities and contractors are subject to the debarment and suspension regulations implementing Executive Order 12549, *Debarment and Suspension* (1986) and Executive Order 12689, *Debarment and Suspension* (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 180 and the Department of Homeland Security's regulations at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non procurement Debarment and Suspension).

- c. These regulations restrict awards, subawards, and contracts with certain parties that are debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs and activities. See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ H; and Procurement Guidance for Recipients and Subrecipients Under 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (Uniform Rules): Supplement to the Public Assistance Procurement Disaster Assistance Team (PDAT) Field Manual Chapter IV, ¶ 6.d, and Appendix C, ¶ 2 [hereinafter PDAT Supplement]. A contract award must not be made to parties listed in the SAM Exclusions. SAM Exclusions is the list maintained by the General Services Administration that contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. SAM exclusions can be accessed at www.sam.gov. See 2 C.F.R. § 180.530; PDAT Supplement, Chapter IV, ¶ 6.d and Appendix C, ¶ 2.
- d. In general, an "excluded" party cannot receive a Federal grant award or a contract within the meaning of a "covered transaction," to include subawards and subcontracts. This includes parties that receive Federal funding indirectly, such as contractors to recipients and subrecipients. The key to the exclusion is whether there is a "covered transaction," which is any non-procurement transaction (unless excepted) at either a "primary" or "secondary" tier. Although "covered transactions" do not include contracts awarded by the Federal Government for purposes of the non-procurement common rule and DHS's implementing regulations, it does include some contracts awarded by recipients and subrecipient.
- e. Specifically, a covered transaction includes the following contracts for goods or services:
 - (1) The contract is awarded by a recipient or subrecipient in the amount of at least \$25,000.
 - (2) The contract requires the approval of FEMA, regardless of amount.
 - (3) The contract is for federally required audit services.
 - (4) A subcontract is also a covered transaction if it is awarded by the contractor of a recipient or subrecipient and requires either the approval of FEMA or is in excess of \$25,000.
 - d. The following provides a debarment and suspension clause. It incorporates an optional method of verifying that contractors are not excluded or disqualified:

"Suspension and Debarment

- (1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R.§ 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).
- (2) The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- (3) This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by (insert name of subrecipient). If it is later determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to (name of state agency serving as recipient and name of subrecipient), the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.
- (4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the

period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions."

9. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment.

- a. <u>Applicability</u>: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.
- b. Contractors that apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more must file the required certification. <u>See 2</u> C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ I; 44 C.F.R. Part 18; *PDAT Supplement*, Chapter IV, 6.c; Appendix C, ¶ 4.
- c. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. Supplement, Chapter IV, ¶ 6.c and Appendix C, ¶ 4.
- d. The following provides a Byrd Anti-Lobbying contract clause:

"Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended)

Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient."

APPENDIX A, 44 C.F.R. PART 18 - CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000)

The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report

Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official

Date"

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor,	_, certifies	or affirm	s the trut	hfulness	and
accuracy of each statement of its certification and cunderstands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U. and disclosure, ifany.		•	-		
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official					
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official					

10. Procurement of Recovered Materials.

- a. <u>Applicability</u>: This requirement applies to all FEMA grant and cooperative agreement programs.
- b. A non-Federal entity that is a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, Pub. L. No. 89-272 (1965) (codified as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act at 42 U.S.C. § 6962). See 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Appendix II, ¶ J; 2 C.F.R. § 200.322; PDAT Supplement, Chapter V, ¶ 7.
- c. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the EPA at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds \$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded \$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.
- d. The following provides the clause that a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors can include in contracts meeting the above contract thresholds:
 - "(1) In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA- designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—
 - (i) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the

contract performance schedule;

- (ii) Meetingcontract performance requirements; or
- (iii) At a reasonable price.
- (2) Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designate items, is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive-procurement-guideline-cpg-program."

11. Additional FEMA Requirements.

a. The Uniform Rules authorize FEMA to require additional provisions for non- Federal entity contracts. FEMA, pursuant to this authority, requires or recommends the following:

b. Changes.

To be eligible for FEMA assistance under the non-Federal entity's FEMA grant or cooperative agreement, the cost of the change, modification, change order, or constructive change must be allowable, allocable, within the scope of its grant or cooperative agreement, and reasonable for the completion of project scope. FEMA recommends, therefore, that a non-Federal entity include a changes clause in its contract that describes how, if at all, changes can be made by either party to alter the method, price, or schedule of the work without breaching the contract. The language of the clause may differ depending on the nature of the contract and the end-item procured.

c. Access to Records.

All non-Federal entities must place into their contracts a provision that all contractors and their successors, transferees, assignees, and subcontractors acknowledge and agree to comply with applicable provisions governing Department and FEMA access to records, accounts, documents, information, facilities, and staff. <u>See_DHS</u> Standard Terms and Conditions, v 3.0, ¶ XXVI (2013).

d. The following provides a contract clause regarding access to records:

"Access to Records. The following access to records requirements apply to this contract:

- (1) The contractor agrees to provide (insert name of state agency or local or Indian tribal government), (insert name of recipient), the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- (2) The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- (3) The contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract."

12. DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.

- a. All non-Federal entities must place in their contracts a provision that a contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre-approval. <u>See DHS</u> Standard Terms and Conditions, v 3.0, ¶ XXV (2013).
- b. The following provides a contract clause regarding DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags: "The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre- approval."

13. Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.

- a. All non-Federal entities must place into their contracts an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the contract along with the requirement that the contractor will comply with all applicable federal law, regulations, executive orders, and FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.
- b. The following provides a contract clause regarding Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders: "This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the contract only. The contractor will comply will all applicable federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives."

14. No Obligation by Federal Government.

- a. The non-Federal entity must include a provision in its contract that states that the Federal Government is not a party to the contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.
- b. The following provides a contract clause regarding no obligation by the Federal Government: "The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract."

15. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.

- a. The non-Federal entity must include a provision in its contract that the contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to its actions pertaining to the contract.
- b. The following provides a contract clause regarding Fraud and False or Fraudulent or Related Acts: "The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract."

Additional contract clauses per 2 C.F.R. § 200.325

For applicable construction/reconstruction/renovation and related services: A payment and performance bond are both required for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required by law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided in the contract.

Offeror agrees to comply with all terms and section of this solicitation.	l conditions outlined in the F	FEMA Special Conditions
Offeror's Name:		
Address, City, State, and Zip Code:		
Phone Number:	Fax Number:	
Printed Name and Title of Authorized Representative:	<u> </u>	
Email Address:		
Signature of Authorized Representative:		Date: